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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suite 510, Chater House

8 Connaught Road

Central

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hameys Services (Cayman) Limited
3rd Floor, Queensgate House

113 South Church Street

P. O. Box 10240

Grand Cayman KY1-1002
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITOR
KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

China Construction Bank

The Bank of East Asia Limited

Bank of China

COMPANY WEBSITE

WWW.kee.com.cn
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B A5

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS EEHMBHE
For the year ended 31 December  #Z 12 A31 HILFE 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Operating Results KR
Gross profit margin (%) FEFIZE (%) 27.2 30.2 30.1 30.4 27.7
Operating profit margin (%) S T 2K (%) 20.7 4.5 4.0 3.1 2.3
Net profit margin (%) (Note 1) TR FIE (%) (MtaE 1) 14.3 2.6 2.2 1.9 0.7
Retun on equity (%) TSI ES R (%) 7.3 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.3
Financial Position B AR
Total assets (HK$'000) wEE(TET) 405,760 368,031 395154 390,719 352,779
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY

(HK$'000) (F#&7T) 186,496 85,894 37,975 81,666 79,383
Total bank borrowing (HK$000)  $R{TE 4% (F#5T) - 15,000 17,000 - -
Total equity attributable to RN E IR

equity shareholders JEIG R AR

of the Company (HK$'000) (F&T) 298,523 290,857 307,804 311,412 303,786
Financial Ratios B gtk =&
Current ratio (times) BN B (£5) 4.0 24 2.2 2.8 52
Quick ratio (times) SREHEL ) (f2) 3.7 2.2 2.0 2.5 4.8
Debt to asset ratio (%) (Note 2) BEBEE % (MiZ2) 21.6 15.2 15.9 13.9 10.5
Turnover Ratios AR
Inventory tumover (days) FERAE(R) 69 64 63 63 70
Debtors turnover (days) FEUBR A (H) 73 78 82 82 84
Creditors tumover (days) JERBRREE (H) 89 75 65 69 69
Notes: Hiat -
) Net profit represents profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. 1) SEFEAR L Bl s IR R N m F o

@) Debt to asset ratio is calculated as the Group's the liabilities over total assets as 2)
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

BEREFZAFER ERER A GEESE MK (4
BEIBMRIRRITR) ©

2016 £ 3R / IS ERAERAT 5
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The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of profit or

Kee

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B A5

AT RAKEZEEBaRREAMBRREKZ

loss and consolidated statement of financial position of the Group: HE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ##SE#ER
OR LOSS
2016 20156 2014 20183 2012
HK$’000 HKFO0O HKHOOO HKFOOO  HKFO00
For the year ended 31 December & ZE 12 A31 BIEFE FHET FET FET FET FETT
Revenue g 153,198 159,016 165,359 160,841 157,373
Cost of sales SHE RN (111,490) (110,919) (115510) (111,927) (113,755
Gross Profit EF 41,708 48,097 49,849 48,914 43,618
Other income HAth iz 7,552 5,056 2,332 1,526 2,029
Distribution costs SoR = DN (10,989) (12,230) (15,936)  (16,921)  (13,630)
Administrative expenses TERB X (42,054) (33,746) (29.692)  (28,542)  (28,330)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  HEMTE A T &S 17,837 - - - -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE L&E
plant and equipment and BFRE i T REETS
leasehold land to related parties  EJlUzR 17,609 - - - -
Profit from operations Fed bl 31,663 777 6,553 4,977 3,687
Finance costs EURID RN 9) (420) @417) - -
Profit before taxation BRBR AT R A 31,654 6,757 6,136 4,977 3,687
Income tax FriS (8,417) (3,517) (2,742) (2,084) (2,859)
Profit for the year FREF 23,237 3,240 3,394 2,913 828
Attributable to: LA B IEFEAG -
Equity shareholders RARERRKER
of the Company 21,940 4,161 3,661 3,061 1,055
Non-controlling interests e AT 2 1,297 (921) (267) (148) (227)

2016 £ 3R / IS ERAERAT 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SEBBERRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December Mm12H318 FH&T FAT FHAT FAT FH&TT
Non-current assets IRBEE 63,448 284,142 254,944 237,499 165,089
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MG 57,323 195813 211,874 189,179 122,651
Interest in leasehold land held BEgEHEE
for own use under operating EAtTHAE
leases R 5 - 30,453 33,052 33,878 33,543
Intangible assets mEEE 3,047 6,161 7,666 6,018 6,668
Prepayment for fixed and ENREEER
intangible assets TERTFRIE 93 280 391 6,319 212
Deferred tax assets BELEFIBEE 2,985 1,435 1,967 2,105 2,015
Current assets REEE 342,312 134,789 140,210 153,220 187,690
Inventories FE 19,417 15,874 18,369 17,101 16,464
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A W IR 135,759 32,014 41,635 40,036 48,169
Current tax recoverable BIHR A Uk (2] 7 18 38 1,007 1,173 204 1,354
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIBEEEY 186,496 85,894 37,975 81,666 79,383
Assets held for sale BIEREEE 602 - - - -
Deposits with banks HRITE HiTF K - - 41,158 14,213 42,320
Total assets BEE 405,760 368,931 395,154 390,719 352,779

8 KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B A5

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF e B AR R &
FINANCIAL POSITION
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December ®12H31H FET FHT FHT FHAT FH&TT
Current liabilities REEE 86,347 55,222 62,323 54,074 35,988
Trade and other payables B 5 LA ERFIE 84,955 39,937 45,290 53,996 33,494
Bank borrowing RITEE - 15,000 17,000 - -
Current tax payable BVHERFE S B IR 1,392 285 33 78 2,494
Net current assets RBEEFE 255,965 79,567 77,887 99,146 161,702
Total assets less current BEERRSERE
liabilities 319,413 318,709 332,831 336,645 316,791

2016 £ 3R / IS ERAERAT (®)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mEMBEIRR R
FINANCIAL POSITION

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$000 HK$000 HKPO00 HKPO0O  HK$000
As at 31 December W12A31H FHBx FHT FHIT T FHIT
Non-current liabilities FREBEE 1,124 632 543 398 1,111
Deferred tax liabilities FEEIEEE 1,124 6382 543 398 1,111
Net assets BEFE 318,289 313,027 332288 336,247 315,680
Capital and reserves EXRHE 298,523 290,857 307,804 311,412 303,786
Share capital A& A 4,348 4,268 4,150 4,150 4,150
Reserves e 294,175 286,589 303,654 307,262 299,636
Total equity attributable to & AFEZKRE
equity shareholders of E LR 4R
the Company 298,523 290,857 307,804 311,412 303,786
Non-controling interests FEIE AR 19,766 22,170 24,484 24,835 11,894
Total equity ERsm 318,289 313,027 332288 336,247 315,680

1 0 KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT



Kee

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of KEE Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

On 19 August 2015, Nicco Worldwide Inc., the former major
shareholder of the Company, disposed of its shares in the Company, to
Glory Emperor Trading Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Zhonghong Holding Co., Limited (“Zhonghong”) which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 979). Upon completion of the
general offer on 17 February 2017, taking into account the valid
acceptance in respect of offer shares under the general offer, together
with completion of placing of 65,500,000 shares on 18 April 2016,
Zhonghong held 326,089,600 shares, representing approximately 75%
of the total issued share capital of the Company.

Zhonghong intends to continue the Group’s principal business of
manufacturing and sale of zippers and other related product (the
"Zippers Business”) and at the same time continue to review the
strategic directions and operations of the Group in order to chart its long
term corporate strategy and growth and to explore other business or
investment opportunities with a view to enhance the Group’s future
development.

In order to diversify our existing Zippers Business, | am proud to
acknowledge that the Group has successfully launched its real estate
agency service business during the second half of the year. Since its
commencement, the sales of property on behalf of the developers has
swiftly surged to a level which is more than meeting management's
expectation. With the dedicated expertise of our property agency team,
the strong linkage with well-established property developers in the
People’'s Republic of China (‘PRC"), and given the positive outlook for
demand on property, the Group is confident and well-positioned to
further develop the real estate agency service business.

EE®RE
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ERATERE2016FE 12 A31 BILEENEDR o

4 {E)E|

MH2015F 8 A19R  AARAIEBREFNSIRER
BRARABRE ZSER AR (FoAIZRRDER
Aal([Hhsh]) (ERRINESR S Em (BRH R
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NERIRED - R2017F2817B =K —RBLE -
AR —RMEOETZHOROGHOEBIER  BERRK
20164 4 A 18 B =K AL & 65,500,000 B A% +
5AFEH 326,089,600 it (n - AR R 2SS 1T
& A4 75% o
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Kee

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

Moving forward, the Group will continue to seek attractive investment
and acquisition opportunities in the other sectors, so as to enhance
profitability and maximize our shareholders’ value. We keep an open
mind when exploring new opportunities, but will only acquire high
potential projects on a selective and prudent basis, without
compromising the financial stability of the Group.

I'would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks and
gratitude to our Group’s management and staff who dedicated their
endless efforts and devoted services, and to our shareholders,
customers, suppliers, bankers and other professional parties for their
continuous support.

Wu David Hang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017

1 2 KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT
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Kee

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group continued to operate the zippers business during the year
ended 31 December 2016. The Group has commenced its real estate
agency business since September 2016 and the results of which is
presented as a new business segment in the consolidated financial
statements.

The customers in zippers business are primarily OEMs who manufacture
apparel products for (i) apparel brands in China; and (i) some well-
known international apparel labels. The Group maintains a close working
relationship with apparel brand owners on the design of zippers to be
applied on the apparel products. The apparel brand owners usually
decide on the supplier for their OEMs and place orders with such OEMs
who in turn source zippers and other garment accessories from the
Group.

The services rendered in real estate agency service business include
the related sales planning, organization, promotion and sales activities of
the property projects in PRC for the property developers. The Company
commenced its property agency business by entering the sales
framework agreement (as supplemented) on 29 September 2016 with
Sanya Luhuitou Tourist Zone Development Company Limited and
Hainan Xinjia Tourism Development Company Limited (the “Sanya
Property Owners”), pursuant to which the Group have been appointed
as exclusive agent for the sales of properties owned by Sanya Property
Owners in Sanya, Hainan of PRC (the “Sanya Property”).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 decreased
slightly to approximately HK$153.20 million as compared with
approximately HK$159.02 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, which comprised of approximately HK$145.57 million contributed
from zippers business, and approximately HK$7.63 million pertaining the
real estate agency service business.

Profit before taxation for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately HK$31.65 million, which was made up of approximately
HK$3.89 million of profit from the zippers business, approximately
HK$0.53 million of loss from real estate agency service business,
approximately HK$14.71 million of unallocated head office and
corporate expenses, approximately HK$35.45 million of profit from the
disposal of equity interests in KEE Jingmen and the leasehold land and
properties located in PRC and Hong Kong and approximately HK$7.55
million of other income mainly representing the net effect of the net
foreign exchange gain and loss on disposal of other property, plant and
equipment.
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Kee

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& D

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS EELEE

REVENUE Wz

The Group’s revenue for the year 2016 amounted to approximately 7 & & % 2016@9’]% ’77% 153,200,000 7T
HK$153.20 million, representing a decrease of 3.7% as compared to #2015 Ff&3.7% BRI 8 R i

the year 2015, mainly due to the decreased sales in finished zippers  ZBASHE R D TR ©
and flat knit ribs.

Revenue analysis by product category: RE BRI D MRS DT

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HILEE

2016 2015
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEAET BEBT
Sales of goodss HE R
Finished zippers and sliders TREE T 5% Jo v B8 139.93 91.3 146.35 92.0
Flat knit ribs T A R 40 1.70 1.1 7.75 4.9
Others Hih 3.94 2.6 4,92 3.1
Rendering of services FEHART
Commission income of rendering 12 ¥ 2 38 fR 7% 2 1A
property agency services A 7.63 5.0 - -
Total revenue Fallg 153.20 100.0 159.02 100.0
Revenue analysis by geographic location: L IBALE B D HIE DT
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE
2016 2015
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEAT BEAT
Mainland China B KR 130.11 84.9 142.70 89.7
Overseas RSB 23.09 15.1 16.32 10.3
Total revenue Pl g 153.20 100.0 169.02 100.0
Finished Zippers and Sliders RFERT 88 2 HI 5

Revenue from sales of finished zippers and sliders decreased by  $8 & 1§ 5% 3 ## & 47 %8 I 2= 2016 F &l 2 &9
approximately HK$6.42 million or 4.4% to approximately HK$139.93 6,420,000 7Tk 4.4%Z #7139,930,000% 7£.(2015
million for the year 2016 (2015: HK$146.35 million) primarily due to the  4F : 146,350,000 7T) - X EHRREMT RELE
substantial change of demand of products from metal zipper to nylon ~ RIEE{t - R B R AEiEh 2 A R g &l
zipper as well as the decrease in demand of finished zippers resulted & 38 SRR M G BURIE R 88 5 SR D FTEK -

from the keen competition in the zippers manufacturing industry.

1 4 KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT



Kee

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite the decrease in revenue, the Group achieved posttive results in
marketing development. During the year 2016, the Group started
cooperation with 8 new brands, among of which 3 brands were
domestic brands and 5 brands were overseas brands.

The Group’s revenue was mainly derived from sales in Mainland China.
Other countries or regions to which the Group sold its products include
Hong Kong, Switzerland, Italy, USA, India, Bangladesh, Germany,
Korea, Belgium, Vietnam, South Africa and Cambodia.

Flat Knit Ribs

Revenue from flat knit ribs decreased by approximately 78.0% to
approximately HK$1.70 million for the year 2016 (2015: HK$7.75
million), mainly due to the cessation of the flat knit ribs segment since
July 2016.

Others

Others represent items such as scrap material, zipper components and
moulds. Revenue of other items decreased by approximately HK$0.98
million to approximately HK$3.94 million (2015: HK$4.92 million). This
was resulted from decrease in demand of moulds from customers and
reduction on sales of scrap materials.

Rendering Property Agency Services

The Group has commenced the property agency business since
September 2016, the Group has successfully sold 14 units of Sanya
Properties and the commission income generated is approximately
HK$7.63 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

In 2016, the overall cost of sales for the Group amounted to
approximately HK$111.49 million (2015: HK$110.92 million),
representing an increase of approximately 0.5%. The overall gross profit
of the Group decreased by approximately 13.3% from approximately
HK$48.10 million in 2015 to approximately HK$41.71 milion in 2016.
The overall gross profit margin in 2016 was 27.2% (2015: 30.2%),
which was due to the decrease in gross profit margin of zipper
business, mainly resulted from the change of demand of products and
the keen competition in the zipper manufacturing industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

m N AT

Gross profit analysis by product category:

EEEW

RERBEREIDEOEN DM -

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HILEE

2016 2015
HK$ million % HKS$ million %
BEBT "AEETT

Sales of goodss HE R
Finished zippers and sliders ES=avk- N EavE:] 42.63 102.2 46.18 96.0
Flat knit ribs T A R 0 (0.06) -0.1 1.29 2.7
Others Ht (0.50) -1.2 0.63 1.3
Rendering of services MRS
Commission income of rendering 1241 2 12 IR 75 2 8

property agency services SUA (0.36) -0.9 - -
Total gross profit HER 41.71 100.0 48.10 100.0
Finished Zippers and Sliders RN SR HITR

Gross profit for finished zippers and sliders decreased by approximately
7.7% from approximately HK$46.18 million in 2015 to approximately
HK$42.63 million in 2016. Gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 31.6% to 30.5%, which was attributable to the decrease
in selling price due to the keen competition of the zipper manufacturing
industry.

Flat Knit Ribs

Gross profit for flat knit ribs decreased by approximately HK$1.35 million
from approximately HK$1.29 million in 2015 to gross loss of
approximately HK$0.06 million in 2016. Gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 16.6% to -3.5%, which was mainly attributable to
the reduction in sales demand of flat knit ribs as well as the cessation of
flat knit ribs segment.

Others

Gross profit of other items decreased by approximately HK$1.13 million
from approximately HK$0.63 million in 2015 to gross loss of
approximately HK$0.50 million in 2016, mainly due to the disposal of
certain slow-moving materials.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Rendering Property Agency Services

Gross loss for rendering property agency services was approximately
HIK$0.36 million, which was mainly due to that scale of property agency
services was not sufficient to cover the related operating costs in its
early stage.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs mainly represent (i) staff costs relating to sales and
marketing personnel; (i) advertising and promotion expenses; and (iii)
transportation costs for delivery of the Group's products to customers.
In 2016, the Group’s distribution costs amounted to approximately
HK$10.99 million (2015: HK$12.23 million), accounting for
approximately 7.2% of the Group’s turover (2015: 7.7%). The decrease
in distribution costs was mainly due to the control of head count and
transportation cost.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) salary and welfare
expenses for management and administrative personnel; (i) professional
fees and auditors’ remuneration; (i) impairment losses of equipment; (iv)
product research and development expenses; and (v) other
administrative expenses including depreciation and amortisation. In
2016, the Group's administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$42.05 million (2015: HK$33.75 million), which accounted for
approximately 27.5% of the Group’s turnover (2015: 21.2%), mainly due
to the increase in staff costs, professional fees and the impairment
losses on certain idle equipments.

INCOME TAX

Income tax mainly represents the tax expenses incurred in relation to the
operations of the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

PROFITABILITY

In 2016, the Group’s profit attributable to equity Shareholders amounted
to approximately HK$21.94 million (2015: HK$4.16 million), representing
an increase of 427.3% as compared to 2015. The increase was
primarily due to the gain on disposal of equity interest of KEE Jingmen
and the leasehold land and properties located in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The margin of profit attributable to equity Shareholders for the
year was 14.3% (2015: 2.6%), an increase of 11.7 percentage points
as compared to 2015,

During the year, the Group’s return on equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was 7.3% (2015: 1.4%), representing an
increase of 5.9 percentage points as compared to 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

INVENTORIES

Inventories are one of the principal components of the Group's current
assets of zipper business. The value of inventories accounted for
approximately 11.8% and 5.7% of the Group’s total current assets as at
31 December 2015 and 2016 respectively.

Inventories increased by approximately 22.3% from approximately
HK$156.87 million as at 31 December 2015 to approximately HK$19.42
million as at 31 December 2016 was mainly due to the increase in
reserve of raw materials for the production in the first quarter of 2017 in
order to response to the purchase order from customers.

The average inventory turnover days for 2016 and 2015 were 69 and
64 days.

The net write-down on inventories for the year 2016 was HK$508,000
(2015: net reversal of write-down HK$182,000) due to the decrease in
the estimated net realisable value of certain slow-moving inventories.

TRADE DEBTORS

The Group'’s policy in respect of allowance for doubtful debts for 2016
was the same as that in prior year. As at 31 December 2016, the
allowance for doubtful debts was approximately HK$1,037,000 (31
December 2016: HK$145,000), accounting for 2.8% of the Group’s
total trade debtors (2015: 0.5%).

The Group's trade debtors (net) increased by around 24.3% from
approximately HK$29.32 million of last year to approximately HK$36.44
million as at 31 December 2016, mainly resulted from the agency
commission receivable derived from property agency business in
December 2016.

The average trade debtors turnover days for 2016 and 2015 were 73
and 78 days.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables mainly represent (i) the advertisement expenses paid
on behalf of the Property Developer; (i) salary expenses paid on behalf
of a related party and (iii) other prepayments for purchasing raw
materials. The significant increase in balance of other receivables by
approximately HK$96.62 million, representing an increase by 3,581%
from approximately HK$2.70 million. This is mainly due to the
advertisement fee obliged to pay on behalf of the Property Developer for
the property agency business amounted to approximately HK$92.65
million, of which approximately HK$48.04 milion was paid by the Group
during the year and the remaining balance was recognized in both other
payables and other receivables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRADE CREDITORS

The Group’s trade creditors primarily relate to purchases of raw materials
from suppliers and the commission payable to the contracted property
agencies, with credit terms of 7 to 60 days for trade creditors.

The Group's trade creditors increased by around 94.0% from
approximately HK$6.69 million as at 31 December 2015 to
approximately HK$12.98 million as at 31 December 2016. The average
trade creditors turnover days increased from 75 days in 2015 to 89
days in 2016.

OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables mainly represent (i) advertisement expense payable on
behalf of the Property Developer; (i) payroll and staff benefits payable; (iii)
accrued expenses; and (iv) advance from third parties on behalf of the
Property Developer. The balance of other payables increased by
approximately 116.5% to approximately HK$71.98 million as at 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$33.25 million) mainly due to advertisement
expense payable to the advertisement agents on behalf of the Property
Developer.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following table is a summary of cash flow data for the two years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2016:

BB W R D

8 7 BRI

AR EE P R E B AR R TR R
BN A ORI ERENAS (B 3ENEROER
#7560 BRE) B -

AEEESEMNERFKB2015F12HA31TBHE
6,690,000 JLIE N9 04.0% & 2016 12 A 31 H
A#712,980,000/8 7T » 2016 T & 5 fEHBR X
EEERE B 2016 F R 75 RIEMEI 89K -

H it B FRIE

HMENRBFEROIRXYEREEINOE
S8 (ENTERETERN  (NETER : Kiv)
REMEREFHUEREE=ZF 2R - EfbfE
T FRTE AR AL 116.5% 22016 4F 12 31 HEY
#971,980,0007 7T (20154 : 33,250,000 7T )
DEEZHERREMERERRNESREINHE

HE-

REBESRELRER
THRARE20156FE K 2016F 12 A31 B IERESE
EMEESREERBE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H831HILEE

2016 2015
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEATT
Net cash (used in)/generated from i EE) (FTA),/ TR e 38
operating activities (56.97) 21.15
Net cash generated from investing activities WEEHEIRE FE 148.41 33.35
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEES S, (FTH)ReF5E
financing activities 18.46 (3.61)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RWENIRESEBYIEINESE 109.90 50.89
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1ATEHNRES MRS EEY 85.89 37.98
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes YN FE R S B ) Ro 2L (9.29) (2.98)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A31BMNBEESRECEEY 186.50 85.89
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W RO

The Group's net cash outflow from operating activities for the year 2016
amounted to approximately HK$56.97 million (2015: net cash inflow
HK$21.15 million). As at 31 December 2016, cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$186.50 million, representing
a net increase of approximately HK$100.61 million as compared with
the position as at 31 December 2015, mainly due to the proceeds
received from the disposal of KEE Jingmen and the disposal of property,
plant and equipment and leasehold land to related parties in 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the cash and cash equivalents are
HK$138.53 million, HK$42.42 million, HK$5.52 million, HK$5,000,
HK$17,000 respectively, expressed in RMB, HKD, USD, EUR and CHF
respectively. As at 31 December 2015, the cash and cash equivalents
are HK$83.76 million, HK$1.23 million, HK$0.80 million, HK$6,000,
and HK$0.10 million expressed in RMB, HKD, USD, EUR and CHF
respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group does not have any bank loan. As
at 31 December 2015, the Group had short term bank loans of HK$156
million, which has been repaid on 14 January 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had unutilised bank facilities
amounting to approximately HK$26.83 million. The debt to asset ratio,
being the Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, at 31 December
2016 was 21.6% (20156: 15.2%). The debt to asset ratio is considered
to be healthy and suitable for the continuous development of the
Group’s business.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$255.97 million. The key components of current
assets as at 31 December 2016 included cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$186.50 million, trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$135.76 million, and inventories of approximately
HK$19.42 million. The key components of current liabilities included
trade and other payables of approximately HK$84.96 million.

The net current assets increased from approximately HK$79.57 million
as at 31 December 2015 to approximately HK$255.97 million as at 31
December 2016, mainly attributable to the proceeds received from the
disposal of KEE Jingmen and the proceeds received from the sales of
property, plant and equipment a leasehold land to related parties during
the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any assets pledged for general facilities granted
by banks.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments as at 31 December 2015 and 2016 not
provided for in the financial statements were approximately HK$9.39
million and approximately HK$O.19 million respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group generally finances its operation with internally generated
resources. Cash and bank deposits and the transactions of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), US dollars
("USD”) and Renminbi ("‘RMB"). As HKD are pegged to USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between USD and
HKD to be insignificant.

The Group had RMB denominated bank deposits amounting to
approximately HK$184,000 (2015: HK$4,948,000) that was held by a
subsidiary of the Company for which HKD is its functional currency.
Additionally the Group had HK$ denominated inter-company other
receivables amounting to approximately HK$178,561,000 (2015: Nil)
that was held by the subsidiaries of the Company for which RMB is their
functional currency. At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
appreciation/depreciation of 0.5% in HK$, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s net profit for the
year and retained profits by approximately HK$745,000 (2015
decreased/increased the Group's net profit for the year and retained
profits by approximately HK$21,000).The Group currently has no
hedging arrangement for foreign currencies. The management will
continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 595 full-time employees (31
December 2015: 570 full-time employees). The Group reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees annually according to the
relevant market practice and individual performance of the employees.
Save for the social insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any
amount of money to provide for retirement or similar benefits for its
employees. The staff costs incurred in the year 2016 were
approximately HK$61.97 million (2015: HK$55.23 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& D

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015
and 2016.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

V)

22

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE OPERATING LEASE IN
RESPECT OF CERTAIN PLANT AND BUILDINGS
On 28 December 2015, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan, senior
management and previous shareholders of the Group, as lessors
and KEE Guangdong as lessee, entered into the lease renewal
agreement (the “Guangdong Lease Renewal Agreement”) to
renew the lease of the Guangdong Plant for a further term of three
years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 for a monthly
rental of RMB310,000.

An independent valuer advised that the monthly rental of
RMB310,000 is fair and reasonable with reference to the market
rate. For each of three years ending 31 December 2018, the
annual rental paid and payable by the Group under the Lease
Renewal Agreement is RMB3,720,000.

During the year, the rental paid by the Group under the
Guangdong Lease Renewal Agreement is RMB3,720,000
(Approximately HK$4,342,000).

On 13 January 2016, Classic Winner, a company owned as to
50% and 50% by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively, as
lessor and KEE Zippers, an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
as lessee entered into the a lease agreement in relation to the
lease of the property in Hong Kong with the rent for the first year
being HK$1. On 17 February 2016, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan resigned as the chairman of the board and chief executive
officer of the Company respectively. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan also resigned as executive directors of the Company, but
have remained as the directors of KEE International (BVI) Limited
("KEE International BVI") and KEE Zippers, the subsidiaries of the
Company since 17 February 2016. Therefore Classic Winner is a
connected person of the Company as of the date of the lease
agreement.

KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT

REBR2015F K 20165 12 A31 B IE T EE M
RAREE -

BERERS

() BEESRETREREFZREHEZ

FERERS

PR2015F 12828 H  AEBSHERENR
AR SR ARG AE R AR SBR A E (fEA A
N ERZER(EAEMA) T LER MR
((BREMEWE])  WERERRE  #—
EFEA=F  B20164%1 A1 B#EE2018
F12A31HLE - AFAARE310,0007T °

B HEMER  25mEHe - ARAR
310,000 LB RAFAE - RNE E20184F
12A3BE=AFESF  REERRGE
REBEN REMFRE A ARES 720,000

7750

FR - AEBAEREAREINNESE
stHA AREE3,720,0007T (494,342 00078 7T) ©

B2016F 1 A13H - HBABR(—RMAFT
P05 5 4 KR FF 85 R ST D B 50% M 50%
EmMAR) BEBARSNE(BARQFM
BENBEAR) MBEMREBNMETYE
B aFleh18 T H2016%F2 A
17 B - FFEH S £ RFF R L E D RIFHEAR
REIEESEERITBEE - B2016F 28
17 B8 - ISt E R T E B EAR
RNANTES  BNEEARARNERQA
KEE International (BVI) Limited ([ KEE
International BVI|) & S #EMESE - Al
BRAEERZARATATMNBEEAL -



()

Kee

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 13 January 2016, Nanhai Jinheming, a company owned as to
50% and 50% by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively, as
lessor and KEE (Zhejiang) Garment Accessories Limited (‘KEE
Zhejiang”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, as lessee
entered into the a lease agreement in relation to the lease of the
land use rights and the buildings and faclility located at Jiashan
County, Zhejiang Province, PRC with the first year as the rent free
period. On 17 February 2016, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan
resigned as the chairman of the board and chief executive officer
of the Company respectively. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan
resigned also as executive directors of the Company, but have
remained as the directors of KEE International BVI and KEE
Zippers, the subsidiaries of the Company since 17 February
2016. Therefore Nanhai Jinheming is a connected person of the
Company as of the date of the lease agreement.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE COOPERATION AGREEMENT
On 12 July 2016, Tianjin Vitality Marketing Consultancy Company
Limited (“Tianjin Vitality”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Yumafang Property Company Limited
("Yumafang Property”), entered into the cooperation agreement
(the “Cooperation Agreement”), pursuant to which Yumafang
Property agreed to engage Tianjin Vitality in providing promotion,
marketing and planning related services for the property
development projects conducted by Yumafang Property for a term
of one year commencing from the date of the Cooperation
Agreement. Yumafang Property agreed to engage Tianjin Vitality
as an agent to provide the following services (the “Services”) to
the Yumafang Property: (i) the online and offline advertising and
promotion activities, event organisation, planning, marketing,
promotion planning, brand building and promotion of the
Yumafang Property; and (i) the online and offline advertising and
promotion activities, event organisation, planning, marketing,
promotion planning for the property development projects
conducted by Yumafang Property. The service fee charged by
Tianjin Vitality will be 6.5% of the cooperation expenses incurred
by Tianjin Vitality for carrying out the Services, which will not
exceed RMB325,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$380,000)
pased on the maximum amount of the agreed expenses of
RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,850,000) for
carrying out the Services incurred by Tianjing Vitality.
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Zhonghong, a controlling shareholder of the Company, indirectly
owns the entire equity interest in Yumafang Property. Accordingly,
Yumafang Property is a connected person of the Company and
the entering into of the Cooperation Agreement constituted a
continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details can be referred to the
announcement of the Company dated 12 July 2016.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

U
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE FRAMEWORK COOPERATION
AGREEMENT

On 29 July 2016, Tianjin Vitality, Tianjin Jinhui and Zhonghong
entered into the framework cooperation agreement (as
supplemented) (the “Framework Cooperation Agreement”),
pursuant to which Zhonghong has agreed to engage Tianjin
Vitality as the exclusive agent for the sales of the property projects
developed by Zhonghong and its subsidiaries (the “Zhonghong
Group”) including the related sales planning, organisation,
promotion and sales activities for the period commencing from the
effective date to 31 December 2017.

The Zhonghong Group shall pay to Tianjin Vitality and Tianjin Jinhui
a commission ranging from 5.5% to 6.5% of the sales amounts
received by the Zhonghong Group for the sales of properties. If
the property projects developed by the Zhonghong Group are
sold at a price exceeding the price agreed by Zhonghong Group
and Tianjin Vitality, Tianjian Vitality shall be entitled to receive an
excess sales equal to 20% to 40% of the excess sales amount
received by the Zhonghong Group.

The maximum annual aggregate amount payable by the
Zhonghong Group to Tianjin Vitality and Tianjin Jinhui under the
Framework Cooperation Agreement shall not exceed
RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$149,500,000).

The Framework Cooperation Agreement has been approved by

Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting which was held
on 5 January 2017.
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(I) CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN

RELATION TO THE OPERATING LEASE IN
RESPECT OF CERTAIN PLANT AND BUILDINGS
On 16 January 2017, Classic Winner, a company owned as to
50% and 50% by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively, as
lessor and KEE Zippers, an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
as lessee entered into a lease renewal agreement (the “HK Lease
Renewal Agreement”) pursuant to which Classic Winner has
agreed to lease to KEE Zippers a property in Hong Kong at a
monthly rental of HK$51,000 payable within the 16th of each
month for an initial term of three years commencing on 16 January
2017 to 15 January 2020. On 17 February 2016, Mr. Xu Xipeng
and Mr. Xu Xinan resigned as the chairman of the board and chief
executive officer of the Company respectively. Mr. Xu Xipeng and
Mr. Xu Xinan also resigned as executive directors of the
Company, but have remained as the directors of KEE Interational
BVI and KEE Zippers, the subsidiaries of the Company, since 17
February 2016. Therefore Classic Winner is a connected person
of the Company as of the date of HK Lease Renewal Agreement.
An independent property valuer advised that the monthly rental of
HK$51,000 is fair and reasonable with reference to the market
rate. For each of the three years ending 15 January 2020, the
maximum annual aggregate amounts payable by the Group under
the HK Lease Renewal Agreement are as follows:
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Year ending 15 January 2020 BZE2020F1 H158EFE 612,000
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On 16 January 2017, Nanhai Jinheming, a company owned as to
50% and 50% by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively, as
lessor and KEE Zhejiang, an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
as lessee entered into a lease renewal agreement (the “Zhejiang
Lease Renewal Agreement”) pursuant to which Nanhai Jinheming
has agreed to lease to KEE Zhejiang the production base in
Zhejiang Province at a monthly rental of RMB275,000 payable
within the first 10 working days before the 16th day of each month
for an initial term of three years commencing on 16 January 2017
to 15 January 2020, with three months’ rent of RMB825,000 as
deposit. On 17 February 2016, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan
resigned as the chairman of the board and chief executive officer
of the Company respectively. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan
also resigned as executive directors of the Company, but have
remained as the directors of KEE International BVI and KEE
Zippers, the subsidiaries of the Company since 17 February
2016. Therefore Nanhai Jinheming is a connected person of the
Company as of the date of the Zhejiang Lease Renewal
Agreement. An independent property valuer advised that the
monthly rental of RMB275,000 is fair and reasonable with
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reference to the market rate. For each of the three years ending PN
156 January 2020, the maximum annual aggregate amounts
payable by the Group under the Zhejiang Lease Renewal
Agreement are as follows:
RMB HKS$

AR BT
Year ending 15 January 2018 HZ=2018F 1 B15HIEFE 4,125,000 4,620,000
Year ending 15 January 2019 HZ=2019F1 A15AILFE 4,125,000 4,620,000
Year ending 15 January 2020 HZE2020F 1 H15ALEFE 4,125,000 4,620,000

PROSPECT =]

Looking ahead, the Group will continue the zipper business and to
expand and grow the scale of its real estate agency service business.

In 2017, the global economy remains gloomy, with uncertainties
increasing. China's economy is also full of challenges and steady growth
is still an important mission for China’s economy. Meanwhile, China
Textile & Garment Industry is still facing a complicated external
environment, with more uncertainties presented for the development for
the industry. The gradually increasing resources and environment
pressure, the fast-rising cost of production elements and more
complicated international trade pattern bring pressures for the steady
growth of China Textile & Garment Industry, which is harmful to driving
demand for high quality zipper.

26

KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT

REARR  AEBESEENBERRBEARER
FHERIERBEES -

R2017F » 2IREBEMRAKR - TABARE KR
8o PEEELSITRIE  BERDETEE
BREENER - BILRE - AESHARERER
ERERERSNEIE S TERBERTEERRRS -
FEEMANERRRES RELANEEEER
AR BRBERNOBREHER - ELBY
PR AR ENIZEIRRBRE SN - TR
BYHREENENTL -



Kee

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For this purpose, we actively take the following response measures:

We will continue to strive for market development, develop new
products, meet market demand and continue to respond quickly to
customer needs to improve customer satisfaction.

In addition, we will continue to improve production and operating
efficiency, equipment and technology as well as automated production,
improve product quality and control production costs.

For the real estate agency service business, with reference to the
Company’s announcements dated 29 July 2016, 2 September 2016,
11 November 2016 and 5 January 2017, the Group entered into a
framework cooperation agreement and two supplemental agreements
(together, the “Znonghong Agency Agreements”) with Znhonghong as the
exclusive agent for the sales of the property projects developed by
Zhonghong Group including the related sales planning, organization,
promotion and sales activities for the period from 5 January 2017 to 31
December 2017. Under the Zhonghong Agency Agreements, the
Group can leverage the experiences and advantages of Znonghong as
a stepping stone to achieve the business expansion plan of the Group
on the sales and marketing of real estate and vacation/tourist destination
projects.

Furthermore, in line with the Group’s strategy in actively exploring new
business opportunity with other independent third parties for the real
estate agency service business, reference is made to the Company’s
announcements dated 30 September 2016 and 28 February 2017, the
Group entered into a sales framework agreement and two supplemental
agreements (together, the “Sanya Agency Agreements”) with the Sanya
Property Owners as the exclusive agent for the sales of properties
located in Sanya, Hainan of PRC. The Sanya Agency Agreements
provide us with a solid platform for an introduction of our real estate
agency service business for the growth in the Group’s financial and
operating performance.

Other than the above, we will continuingly improve the operation
efficiency, facilities and techniques, as to provide better product and
service quality, lower costs and further build up the customers’
satisfaction.
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GREREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has committed to achieve high corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountapility.

The Company’'s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code except the deviations mentioned in this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enguiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five members, consisting of two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationships
between the members of the Board are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 58 to 62
of the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the presence of executive Directors during the year.

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and
general meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:

Annual
Board General
The Board Meetings Meeting
Attendance  Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman) 3/3 0/0
(resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Xu Xinan 3/3 0/0
(resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert 3/3 0/0
(resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Wu David Hang 4/4 1/
(appointed on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Hou Jian 4/4 0/1

(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yang Shaolin 3/3 01
(resigned on 17 February 2016)
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Annual
Board General
The Board Meetings Meeting
Attendance  Attendance
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Bin 3/3 0/0
(resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 3/3 0/0
(resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 3/3 0/0
(resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 3/4 1/
(appointed on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Tse Calvin Kai Chuen 3/4 1/1
(appointed on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Leung Ka Tin 3/4 1/

(appointed on 17 February 2016)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

As at 31 December 2016, the positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer were held by Mr. Wu David Hang. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for chairing the meetings,
managing the operations of the Board, and ensuring that all major and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for
running the Company’s businesses and implementing the Group's
strategic plans and business goals.

On 17 February 2016, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan resigned as
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company
respectively and Mr. Wu David Hang was appointed as chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. This constitutes a deviation from
the Code Provision A.2.1 but the Board considers that this structure
where the leadership of the Board is distinct from the executive
responsibilities for running the business operations will not impair the
balance of power and authority between the board and the management
of the business, especially given that there is a strong and independent
non-executive element on the Board and a clear division of
responsibilities for running the business of the Company. The
arrangement under which the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer are performed under the same individual is considered as
beneficial at the present stage as it helps to maintain the continuity of
the Company'’s policies and the stability of the Company’s operation as
well as to enhance the management of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a
specific term and is subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.
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TRERBE

The Directors shall disclose to the Company detalils of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Interally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics will be issued to Directors where
appropriate.
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BOARD DIVERSIFY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversify Policy to comply with the
Code Provision on board diversity. The Policy aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity in the Board to ensure that the Board has
the balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills. In identifying suitable
candidates, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on
merit and against the objective criteria with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. During the year, there is no addition to the Board.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training with an emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a director of a listed company on continuous professional
development during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Reading Attending

Name of Directors Materials Seminars

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman) v X
(resigned on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Xu Xinan v X
(resigned on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert v X
(resigned on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Wu David Hang (Chairman) v v
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Hou Jian v v

(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Yang Shaolin v v
(resigned on 17 February 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Bin v X
(resigned on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Kong Hing Ki v X
(resigned on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy v v
(resigned on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John v v
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Tse Calvin Kai Chuen v v
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Leung Ka Tin v v

(appointed on 17 February 2016)

TRERBE

EEELNHE
EECRMEFESTLMBER  WETESFZ T
ETRIGX - ZBREEREINESTEZTLm
AIHZE WRRESSARTRE &Rk
SHROBHAE  BREETRRMER - Fik - X
EEHBEER FELR AHALEE-REX
EEVEtEAER @ERAANENRE I
UNEBHRERTBEMESFEN B ZTmEE
RAFER  EFGARBHILHKE -

REBEARFAELE  EFEREE20165F 12 A
BTALFEADEIAEAN —HENTETEXE
RO LHRARIMEEE 2B - e NBE 25

Al o

EEHE MEME  HEEE

HITEE

BB (EFE) v X
(201642 A 17 HEHE)

Him kA v X
(R2016%2 17 HEHT)

M=t v X
(R20164%2 17 HEHT)

SMIERAE(EFE) v v/
(201642 B 17 BEZT)

®REE v/ v/
(R2016 &2 A17 HEZT)

FEHTTER
ML A v v/
(R20164%E2 A 17 BEHE)

BUHHITEE

XS v X
(R20164%2 17 HEHT)

TTEIEE S v X
(B 20164E2 A 17 HEHE)

EEESE v/ v/
(R2016%2 17 HEHMT)

BERAELE v/ v/
(R2016%F2 A17 HEZT)

HEHFLE v/ v/
(201642 B 17 HEZT)

PR LA v/ v/
(R2016 &2 A17 HEZT)
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
posted on the Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent
non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of
each Board committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on page
2 and page 3.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal control
procedures and risk management system, the effectiveness of the
Company's internal audit function and relationship with external auditors,
and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, Mr. Tse Calvin
Kai Chuen and Mr. Leung Ka Tin (all appointed on 17 February 2016).
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, an independent non- executive Director, is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Lin Bin, Mr. Kong Hing Ki and
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy ceased to be members of the Audit
Committee after their resignations as independent non-executive
Directors on 17 February 2016.

The Audit Committee held three meetings to review interim and annual
financial results and reports during of the year ended 31 December
2016 and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function scope of work
and appointment of external auditors, connected transactions and
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also had three meetings with the external auditors
without the presence of the executive Directors.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 had been reviewed by the audit committee and
audited by the external auditors.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Audit Committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
below:

Audit Committee Attendance

Mr. Lin Bin (Chairman) 0/0
(ceased to be a member on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Kong Hing Ki 0/0
(ceased to be a member on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 0/0
(ceased to be a member on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman) 3/3
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Tse Calvin Kai Chuen 3/3
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Leung Ka Tin 3/3

(appointed on 17 February 2016)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management; reviewing and making recommmendation to the
Board on the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management; establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy to ensure that no Director or any of his
associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, Mr. Tse
Calvin Kai Chuen and Mr. Leung Ka Tin (all appointed on 17 February
2016). Mr. Leung Ka Tin, an independent non-executive Director, is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy,
Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Lin Bin ceased to be members of the
Remuneration Committee after their resignations as independent non-
executive Directors or executive Director on 17 February 2016.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company, and to determine the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management and other related matters
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Remuneration Committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
below:

Remuneration Committee Attendance

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) 0/0
(ceased to be a member on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Xu Xipeng 0/0
(ceased to be a member on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Lin Bin 0/0
(ceased to be a member on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Leung Ka Tin (Chairman) 1/1
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 1/
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Tse Calvin Kai Chuen 1/1

(appointed on 17 February 2016)

The remuneration of senior executives by band for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:

Number of Persons

HKDO to HKD200,000
HKD200,000 to HKD400,000
HKD400,000 to HKD600,000
HKD1,400,000 to HKD1,600,000
HKD1,600,000 to HKD1,800,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, Mr. Tse Calvin
Kai Chuen and Mr. Leung Ka Tin, and one executive Director, namely,
Mr. Wu David Hang (all appointed on 17 February 2016). Mr. Wu David
Hang, an executive Director, is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kong Hing Ki, Mr. Xu Xinan and Mr. Lin Bin ceased to
be members of the Nomination Committee after their resignations as
independent non-executive Directors or executive Director on 17
February 2016.

N N

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

36

KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT

201612 A31 RIEFE - 8RFE=HEH M
%Eu?’k uaﬁ%@ﬂﬁm—

Bz
%8

FHEES HHE R

BB AE (EF) 0/0
(R2016FE2 17 BB AKE)

s & 0/0
(H20165FE2B17 BB AKE)

MO 5 A 0/0
(R2016E2 A17BTBAKE)

RRIMEE(EE) 1/
(R2016%F2 A17 HEZT)

HEHSLE 1/1
(2016452 B 17 REZT)

HEE S E 1/
(R2016%F2 A17 HEZT)

HZE2016F12A31BLEFE  afITHRAEZ

HENES T

AE

0/ JTZE 200,000/8 7T

200,000 7L & 400,000 7T

400,000 7T 2 600,000 7T

1,400,000 % 7T E 1,600,000 % 7T
1,600,000 % 7T Z 1,800,000 % 7T

REZE®

RELZESHNA LB IUIERITESMAERK
BERBLE SEEFLERRRIMAER— %
WITEERMELE(RHLR2016F2H17HE
ZE)c RMIELERNITES  TAHAREZES
MERF o TEBLA - FHBEEERMELER
20162 A17 BRI BYIFRITESHNITES
% THAREZEEKE -

N N

RAEZBEZIZRACKREHNESS AN
REEZERBEFERNESSREER UKk
FHEBIFMITE R 2B -



Kee

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination procedures
for selection of candidates for directorship of the Company by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the Company’s
needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
External recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out
selection process when necessary.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the annual general meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Nomination Committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
below:

Nomination Committee Attendance

Mr. Kong Hing Ki (Chairman) 0/0
(ceased to be a member on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Xu Xinan 0/0
(ceased to be a member on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Lin Bin 0/0
(ceased to be a member on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Wu David Hang (Chairman) 1/1
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 1/
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Tse Calvin Kai Chuen 1/1
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Leung Ka Tin 1/1

(appointed on 17 February 2016)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code, and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 82 to 88.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is set out under note 4(c) to the Notes
to the Financial Statements on page 121.
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The detalls of other services are set out as follows: EmREMFFIBIOT
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
— review services — EBR% 840 348

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Our Board of Directors has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective internal controls and risk management are
maintained. The internal control system, which is overseen by the
executive directors and the management, is designed to provide
reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition and to
maintain proper accounting records for producing reliable financial
information.

Under Code Provision C2.5 of the CG Code, the Group should have an
internal audit function. The Group has reviewed the need for an intermal
audit department annually. Due to the present company structure, the
Management is of the opinion that instead of setting up an internal audit
department, it would be more cost effective to engage an independent
professional third party to review the Group’s internal control measures
and report to the Audit Committee members. The review covered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes, budget, internal audit, financial reporting functions and
Listing Rules compliance. Major risk factors and recommendations were
presented to the Audit Committee members for their consideration.

In additions, the Management assessed and presented regular reports
to the Audit Committee members on its own assessments of key risks,
strengths, weaknesses of the overall internal controls systems and
remedies. The external auditors also reported on any control issues
identified in the course of their work and presented to the Audit
Committee members.
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Based on above reviews performed by the Management, external
auditors and the independent professional third-party, the Board viewed
that during the year ended 31 December 2016, risk management and
internal control system were effective and sufficient, and no event led to
material impact on Group’s financial, operational and compliance
controls.

While the Board strives to implement an effective and sound internal
control and risk management system to safeguard the interest of
Shareholders and the Group'’s assets, the Board also acknowledges
that a sound system of intemal controls is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance. The effectiveness of the
internal control and risk control systems will be reviewed on an annual
pasis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chu Kin Ming was appointed as secretary of the company on 17
February 2016. He is also the main contact person of the Company.
Pursuant to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rule, the company secretary must
take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The company secretary provided his training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending seminars and reading relevant
guideline materials.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at Shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at Shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange after each Shareholder meeting.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company'’s articles of association, any one
or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETINGS

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
articles of association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting
following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company.

Note:  The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong:

Address: Room 510, 5/F, Chater House,
8 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 3184 0111
Email: marcus.chu@zhonghongintl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address, apart from the registered office
of the Company, and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information
may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 3897 9800 for assistance.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
The Chairman of the Board, all other members of the Board including
independent non-executive Directors, and the chairmen of all Board
committees (or their delegates) will make themselves available at the
annual general meetings of the Company to meet Shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes
to its articles of association. The version of the Company's articles of
association is also available on the Company’s website and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - HERERBWRS

INTRODUCTION

The contents contained in this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG”) report include the information obtained through a number of
channels from shareholders, stakeholders and various parties over the
year. The report covers environmental protection, workplace quality,
operating practices and community involvement aspects and Corporate
Social Responsibility ("CSR") Model. We have given full consideration to
issues that are concerned about by major stakeholders, and adhered to
the principles of materiality, completeness, comparability and
stakeholder involvement, whereby the substances of this ESG report
are determined. This report spans over a period from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2016, and covers information of the Group — Hong
Kong headquarter and the production bases in Foshan and Zhejiang,
the People’s Republic of China. This report provides detailed explanation
with regard to the Group’s CSR model on different aspects. The
Group’s CSR model is set out as follows.

Environmental
Protection

BB IRE

Stakeholder
Communication

Fr 3 i

Community
Involvement

A1 2 B

WEIT

ARIR - @ RER(ESG) BEMBATHRK
R-BOhERTRABHERB - FRIERTTREM
ESMEMREEMK - HEATRERERE
THEREEER  CEEN HR2EREEZE
EHERE(CSRDEREA - RAIFEDZERE T £HE
TERNEMBELONZE  ANEREREEN =<
B A ERRFNESEERA - BET A
ESGHREFMEAAT ABRSHEBEER
201651 A1H £20165F12A31H BEBRE
TEBEBAMEPEARKMBEGS LT E
EEMNEN AREETBRAKENDELS
BEERAPETEFNREE - ARENEEHE
BEERAWT -

Workplace
Quiality

TAERSTER
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Practices

B
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1.

a4

1.1

1.2

EMISSIONS

The Group ensures emission in compliance with the
prescribed standards of the state on the basis of
obtainment of pollutant emission permit from the
governmental regulatory authority.

The Group strictly complies with local regulations to identify
and manage the emission to ensure the safe treatment,
transportation, storage, use, recycle, reuse and disposal of
it. For example, printing and dyeing wastewater created
during the production process in each plant is handled by
the sewage facilities, with most of them recycled through
water reuse system. Moreover, each plant has a specific
storage room to keep different materials, for example, the
dyeing sludge and waste paint bucket is stored in a
ventilated and isolated room. Besides, dyeing sludge is
dewatered to reduce its water content and volume. It is kept
to a certain amount before the collection by the eligible
recycling company, hence reducing the burden on landfills
and relieving the damage on the environment.

USE OF RESOURCES

In response to China’s “12th Five-Year Plan” call, the Group
advocated green lighting. The Group actively promoted
energy-saving technological transformation projects,
including the upgrading of the original equipment (for
example, the replacement instead of ordinary fluorescent
lamps to energy-efficient lamps in 2004), improving
respective systems in the plants (for example, air
compressor frequency conversion), improving power
efficiency, which is in line with the Group’s low-carbon
strategy. In 2016, the Group consumed approximately 7.7
million kilowatts of electricity. In terms of reduction of water
waste water use, the Group is able to recycle printing and
dyeing wastewater through the water reuse system. In
2016, the Group consumed approximately 270,000 tons of
water. Al in all, the above strategies are able to reduce
energy waste while taking into account the environmental
policies and maximizing the use of natural resources.

In regards of the waste management and recycling, the
Group recorded approximately 49 tons of recyclable
industrial waste, 170 tons of domestic waste and 30 tons
of kitchen waste in 2016. The Group requires the
employees to separate and classify the wastes. In 2016,
the Group's dehydrated dyeing sludge, waste oil, dyestuff
waste, waste lamp and waste drums totaled about 49 tons.
These hazardous wastes are stored in a specialised place
and handled in accordance with the “Hazardous Waste
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Storage Pollution Control Standard” in PRC. During the year,
The Group commissioned a qualified company to transfer
and process the wastes according to the transfer system
and declaration and registration system stipulated under
relevant laws and regulations.

2. WORKPLACE QUALITY
2.1 WORKING CONDITIONS

The policy of working conditions is in the principle of
people-oriented. In relation to personnel management such
as staff hiring, promotion, performance evaluation and
compensation, the Group establishes a labour relationship
on the footings of legitimacy and equality, which avoids any
discrimination based on gender, age, place of birth, race,
language, nationality and religion. The Group recruits
employees through two channels including recruitment from
public means and schools. The recruitment of the
employees embodies the principles of social responsibilities
such as employment equality, human rights respectiveness,
employees diversity, child and forced labour prohibition.

In respect of salaries and benefits, the Group provides a
comprehensive remuneration package of compensation
and benefits for its employees. The remuneration package
is mainly determined according to the employee
development, individual performance and organisational
performance. The Group provides its new employees with
clear codes of practice, rules and regulations, as well as
information relating to salary and benefit system.

In addition to contractual salary, the Group has also set up
a mandatory provident fund scheme (‘“MPF Scheme”) in
accordance with the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
and medical insurance plan for all employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme, which is subject to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. The MPF Scheme requires employers and
employees to make the MPF scheme contributions at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a statutory limit
of HK$1,500 per month.
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The Group's employees in the PRC are entitled to five
national statutory social insurances (including basic pension
insurance, basic medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, maternity insurance and unemployment
insurance). According to the relevant employment law in
respective regions, the Group provides statutory holidays
such as the basic paid annual leave and matemity leave for
employees. Meanwhile, for overtime work by employees in
non-office hours (e.g. post working hours on general
working days, or statutory holidays of the country),
employees may receive the appropriate overtime payment
according to the requirements of the labour law. Lastly, in
order to enhance the sense of belonging, the Group has
set up a birthday management regulation to standardize the
birthday celebration activities for employees every month.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group has in total
approximately 600 employees. The table set out below is
the key performance indicator ("KPI") established according
to department and age group of employees. Most of the
employees are employed for our business operation in the
PRC. The approximate proportions of technical
management staff and production base workers:

AEFBEBEAZETZERERAER
AR (BEEABEERRE EX
EERE - IERE - £BRE - X
¥RR) - AEERESHENEERE
BER KYEIERANETFENRR
MEBSEAEBY B BITRNIE
PETRFR (20 - —RTERPE TR
FREAREEENRA) BEELIE 9%
BE)ERERIREAMITE - &%

ABRERBR AEERIYTERE

BRE MBEEAABITRTMNAER
BHEH -

«@ﬁmmﬁmﬁ%way$%ﬁﬁé
MEA600% » TREKRE THELPT

&Eﬁ@ﬂ
Performance Indicators *

REt B TERNHEES -

% 57 K BE $2 48 SUIEAZ (Key
EREKPL) »

BB

MABEEMAEEABBAELR

Approximate

proportion Approximate

of technical proportion

management of production
staff base workers Total

B M Hih4 B
N-FL ABHG GRS
Aged 18-25 18-25 5% 1% 13% 14%
Aged 25-30 25-307% 5% 20% 25%
Aged 30-40 30-407% 12% 31% 43%
Aged 40-50 40-507% 4% 12% 16%
Over 50 505 £ 1% 1% 2%
Total HEt 23% 77% 100%

KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT




Kee

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2.2

In order to recognise the importance of the communication
with its employees, the Group encourages its employees to
share their ideas, raise questions or make suggestions to
the Group. With the availability of a wide array of
communication channels, the Group offers its employees
access to the latest information of the Group through a
number of means such as the Group’s website and
Company’s quarterly journal. Employees can also maintain
timely and smooth communication with the management,
colleagues and partners of the Group through members of
the union or representatives of the employees.

Staff restaurants are available in the Group’s production
plants. The Group also sets aside reserved funds for staff
activities, which enables the employees to relieve stress,
and, promote the Group'’s corporate culture of the spirit of
solidarity and cohesion among the employees.

LABOUR STANDARDS

All work should be voluntarily performed and shall not
involve forced labour, debt repayment, contractually bound
labour or involuntary prison labour. All employees may
resign upon reasonable notice. The Group prohibits child
labour in any workplace. “Child labour” refers to any
employee under the age of 16 (or the minimum legal age for
labour). Working hours shall not exceed the limit stipulated
by local laws and employees are entitled to one day-off per
week. Salary and benefits also comply with applicable wage
laws, in relation to minimum wage, overtime hour and
mandatory benefits. The salary payment is made in a timely
manner.

The Group prohibits discrimination based on race, colour,
age, gender, sexual orientation, ethnicity, disability,
pregnancy, religion, political affiliation, union membership or
marital status in recruitment and employment practices such
as promotions, rewards, access to training and demotion.

BB .
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2.3 HEALTH AND SAFETY

With safe production as its first priority, the Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations including the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ({F#E AR
HFRH L E)E)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Work Safety ((HF#E AR ELMBE L 2 EEER)) and the
Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases ({F % A R £ #
BEERBIRED).

Every plant of the Group configures a dedicated staff
canteen and obtained “Food Service Permit” according to
local law. Staff canteen is managed by the meal
management committee composited of management
representatives and staff representatives. Its responsibility is
to monitor the procurement of food to ensure that the food
meets the national health standards.

The Group trains employees to prevent occupational
hazards from time to time, and regularly distribute labor
protection supplies and tools to employees, such as gloves,
masks, earplugs, protection shoes and first aid kits. At the
same time, the company commissioned a qualified
professional organisation specializing in detection and
evaluation of workplace occupational hazards on an annual
basis to monitor the work environment. In accordance with
the professional guidance in the report issued by the
qualified Professional organization the Group posts the
hazard warning signs and labour protection supplies
reminders in relevant work places. The Group provides to
the relevant staff with annual occupational health
examination. Meanwhile, the Group also implement the
labor protection supplies regulatory mechanism. With
regular inspection by dedicated persons, the employees are
required to wear labour protection supplies to safeguard
their health.
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In terms of production safety, the Group provides target HELZEZHE AEBAFHEAETL
training for newly recruited employees with three levels of RS EEEN - BA=EKNHEA
personal safety training. The specific categories are as ZaRE o BEBERIMT

follows:

Education categories Abstract

BB BE

First level 1. The company’s production safety circumstance and basic knowledge of
(Corporate education) production safety;

FE—RE RANEEREREREELRZERNMNGE

(RAIFF)

Second level
(Workplace education)
FEREI
(ZEZFEEFN)

Third level

(Position education)
FE=HEI
(RARIEEI)

2. The company safety rules and regulations and labor discipline;
RAREMREGIZELE LR

3. The employees’ rights and obligations in production safety;
ETNEELRTRENESE

4, Emergency rescue plan and self-help knowledge;
SRIER KB R

5. The accident case study;
E S E T

6. Other safety-related training.
Hth 22 2 A8RALE G o

1. Working environment and risk factors;
TERRENREREE

2. Occupational hazards and casualties that may be suffered;
AREXNBERERET

3. Work safety responsibilities, operational skills and mandatory standards;
TER2EME - BERREREHIMERE

4. Rescue and first aid methods, evacuation and on-site emergency treatment;
MRS « BRAURIRISER ;

5. Use and maintenance of safety equipment and personal protective
equipment;
ZERIBREANRERBHER R MgEE

6.  Safety production conditions in workplace and related rules and regulations;
TESMO R 2 EE G RERRESE

7. Measures to prevent accidents and occupational hazards and safety matters
that should be paid attention to;
e EM RBERENRBAREIENTEEIE

8. The accident case study;
E S E T

9.  Other training content.
HMEIIREA -

1. Safety operating procedures for related position;
HARELN R 2RIERRF
2. The safety and occupational health matters relating to interconnection
petween different positions;
BETRAMLEBNT D RBEREREE
3. The accident case study;
E S E T
4. Other training content.
HMIEIIREA -

2016 £/ Mrzremsa 409



Kee

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERBWS

50

During 2016, no severe industrial accidents were recorded
by the Group, while seven minor industrial accidents had
occurred, which were mainly caused by improper operation
of machinery and malfunction of equipment. The KPI of the
production base, measured in days lost due to work injury,
is set out in the table below.

20165  AEBUEBABRETES
W BEA - AEMIEER T2
EHAREENTE RIERZERER
B TEEBATIEBHSAENSE
EFEMHKPIERTE :

Production base of the Group

AEBEBEEEM
Foshan Zhejiang
Item HH B0 piiipan
Days lost due to work injury TSR TIEER 97 27

The Group has strengthened on-the-job safety training by
requiring all department heads responsible for work injury to
carry out safety training for their department staff, and
through a series of measures to enhance the safety
awareness of employees in order to avoid the recurrence of
similar incidents.

In addition, the Group has set up emergency first aid kits in
all workplaces and offices, and sent workplace
representatives to participate in first aid knowledge training
provided by the Red Cross. Each year, the Group also
invites local authoritative medical rescue units to conduct
on-site first aid knowledge training for all employees.

Moreover, the Group has assigned dedicated people to
conduct monthly inspection of the fire equipment, and invite
a qualified professional institution to perform annual
inspection on fire equipment. On every spring and autumn,
the Group perform full fire drill to strengthen the awareness
of fire safety and fire prevention. Fire squadrons are invited
to participate in and lead the group fire drill. They also
provide on-site education and training to all employees.
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2.4 DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group highly emphasizes on the internal and external
leamning and training to enhance the educational standards
and working ability of employees. The Group has co-
operated with corporate consulting firms to provide different
types of Employee trainings. The categories include
personnel, finance, production management, personal
qualities, research and development and marketing. For key
senior management, the Group funds them to study Master
of Business Administration or English course. Through
education and training, the Group enables its employees to
enhance their personal qualities, strengthen their working
skills and reinforce the team performance. Moreover,
employees can grow with the Group by realising their own
values on the basis of their personal interest and expertise.

All employees are subject to regular performance and
career development appraisal, in order to ensure the
efficiency and quality of the employees and to foster the
stable development of the Group. Based on the work
needs, the Group has launched a multi-skilled pay program
to encourage the employees to acquire additional
professional skills of different production procedures.

Promotions are made in accordance with the needs from
the Group’s business development and the employees’
competence. Vacancies of the Group’s internal
management positions will be filled up internally by
promoting the most qualified employees within the Group.
This offers the employees with the opportunities for
promotion and enhances the efficiency of the Group.

2.4 BRELZI
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3.1 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Based on Supply Chain Social and Environmental
Responsibilities (“SER”) Management, the principal raw
materials currently required by the Group’s production
operation include metallic and plastic raw material, chemical
and dyeing material and packaging material. The Group
maintained a list of potential suppliers, containing hundreds
of domestic and overseas suppliers. In addition to factors
such as pricing, quality, reliability in supply, the Group will
also take into account the suppliers’ performance in fulfilling
their social responsibilities and commitment to
environmental protection in the selection of suppliers. The
Group requires the suppliers to comply with the laws and
regulations in the countries and regions where their
operations are located, and operate in good faith by
adhering to their business ethics. The Group prohibits
discrimination arising from regional, racial, cultural and
political factors in the course of certification, evaluation and
optimisation of suppliers.

In addition, to reinforce suppliers’ respect for employees
awareness of environmental protection as well as health
and safety, the Group requires all suppliers to sign the
“Supplier Cooperation Letter”. At the same time, a
dedicated team has been set up to conduct on-site
appraisal of high-risk suppliers, and assists suppliers in
improving the substandard performance. The Group also
joins hands with suppliers to combat commercial bribery
and other illegal activities. The Group transacted based on
fair, justice and open principles by entering “Clean
Cooperation Commitment” with suppliers.
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3.2 PRODUCT LIABILITY 3.2 EmEE

i

Quality Management

With unwavering commitment to premium product
quality, the Group has established a set of
comprehensive quality control system. The
companies within the Group have successively
passed the certification of ISO9001 quality control
system, the STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX® (OEKO-
TEX 100) textile product certification system and Trim
Qualification Program (TQP) quality control system.
The Group has set up a competent comprehensive
quality control department, which implements product
quality standards in strict compliance with customers’
requirements. The department adheres to strict rules
in trial production and perform sample tests on mass
production in order to monitor the quality with
customers. Until now, no recall of product due to
safety reasons has occurred.

Advertising and labeling management

The Group manages labeling and advertising by laws
to protect consumers’ rights and maintain brand
image. The Group conforms the requirements of

1. HEEEE
FRHEEEMNAG  SEE
VT —ETENREERRR -
EBETEBERARLEBRABT
ISO9001 & & il #8 5 ~ OEKO-
TEX® STANDARD 100 (OEKO-TEX
100) 1 B R EE ZE KTim
Qualification Program (TQP)& &
EHEERE EEF—ETE

MEEHIEFT - BRIRBER
ERPTEMMERE  ETE
mREMEEME  HEFHLF
ﬁ JEDDDD | //Er'd ° $§§<3§/%\
WTEEFFRLEHECREERN
=LA

2. EEEEEHE
SEREETEREENESE
& E— B REBEEENER
MEQRNMBTER - KEREK

Advertisements Law of the People's Republic of BET(hEARLNEESL)
China. The Group also manage design and change of EREABRES }aiﬁ%’ﬁ%ﬁ?

packaging materials used for new products to make
the product package conform to the characteristic of
products, the demand of market, the technical
conditions and the provisions of national laws and

mIRENBEM R
BEE - L’Eﬁﬁﬁkx'JEqu’]&%ﬁ
BEMMNEE  MIEHNER -
E_Iﬁﬁ’]ﬂ%ﬁfﬂlﬁiﬂiﬁi%ﬁm

regulations. Design draft of label, manual and HE 2%  SHBEZEReEEN
package should include product specifications, RABFBEMMAL  BER
packaging specifications, size requirements, material o RTER - MEESk - 98
requirements, appearance requirements, packaging EXRNERBEL 2B REHE
safety requirements and other specific contents which NE - WHARIMSHE - £E

are reviewed by marketing department, manufacturing
department, logistics department and quality control
department.

BB R ER A E B G R ETTE
ZHEAE -
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3 Consumer Services

With uphold of the principle of honest, the Group tries
best to provide accurate product information and
protect customer’s right to know. Customers make
complain by oral, telephone, malil, fax, visiting or other
form to the Group. The Group has developed
Customer Complaint Handling Mechanism to regulate
procedure of complaint registration, evaluation,
investigation and treatment. Quality problems from
customers shall be solved immediately and effectively
to improve consumers’ satisfaction. According to the
Mechanism, any department or personnel receiving
customers’ complaints shall forward them to sales
department and quality control department. Quality
control department takes charge of organising
investigation and treatment of customers’ complaints
related to product quality, approving relevant
corrective and preventive actions plan, assisting sales
department to reply to customers. Sales department
assists quality control department to investigate
complaint, provides and implements sales measures,
communicates with customers and replies the
complaint.

4, Privacy Protection
The Group has prepared the measures on
commercial secrets in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC to protect its legal rights.
The Group has established an internal confidential
system and requires relevant personnel to sign a non-
disclosure agreement.

3.3 ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group advocates honesty and trustworthiness, and
never allows bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering or
breach of professional ethics. All employees need to sign
the “Integrity Agreement” on entry date in order to restrict
their behavior, establish good professional ethics and clear
responsibilities, and strengthen supervision. "Clean
Cooperation Commitment” is also required to be entered
with customers or suppliers before transacting with them,
promising No violation of good faith principle in the course of
any business dealings in the future. During the reporting
period, there were no lawsuit against the group companies
or their employees in respect of fraud and corruption.
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4.

IS -

At the same time, the Group sets up a hotline to receive
reports from all employees, external organizations or
personnel. In addition to hotline, the Group also includes
mailbox, e-mail and Internet platform to encourage internal
fraud reporting.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

4.1 COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
The Group emphasizes the support of the community and
participates in a number of charitable activities, such as the
establishment of the “KEE Charitable Foundation” to help
employees in difficult circumstances. In addition, the Group
participates in a number of charitable activities for the
students, disabled, elderly, impoverished and athletes.

COMMUNICATION WITH
STAKEHOLDERS

In order to better implement our corporate social responsibilities,
the Group maintains communications with stakeholders such as
shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers, communities and
non-governmental organizations through a number of channels.
Through which, the Group can listen to the voices of various
parties, understand their expectations and learn the merits from
them. Stakeholders’ selection, communication frequencies, their
issues of concern as well as the approach of the Company are

HERERRS
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MENES  TROMEAEENHE

B FISEE 2R - T ENEE AR
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detailed in the following table:

Stakeholders Selection criteria

Communication channels
and frequencies

Efforts and approach

Issues of concern of the Group

BHE BERE BEREBEREE BYEE KEZHFE@
Shareholders - The Group publishes annual Shareholders’ benefits, a Both the Group and Directors

and interim results in a timely
manner. While shareholders
may communicate with the
Group in the annual general
meeting and through regular
contact, they also obtain
information about the Company
on the spokesman platform,
investors’ conferences,
investment lectures and
roadshows, press release and
the Group's website arranged
by the Group on time

priority for the Group’s will strictly comply with relevant
decision, and an emphasis on  regulations of the Listing Rules
open dialogue with in Hong Kong regarding the
shareholders which ensure that  protection of shareholders’
shareholders receive important  interests.

public listing information,

understand the business

performance strategies and

prospects of the Group
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B g RERRE

Stakeholders

Selection criteria

Communication channels
and frequencies

Issues of concern

Efforts and approach
of the Group

BHE BERE BRREREE I 1= EEZHFE
(& = RRBEHFERPHES - ASERRELUREFNRSR QARREFHEBETES
BRERBBEENREBEE %L TEHARFHEBR KR EHABNREREERNE
RER—MBEFERAE REKDREGEIHARNEEE  BIKA -
EEARON - A BEEK R TRAKEEBRR
VHBEEATA REEE KEEIE
# RAFRHEGREE
HR R EERAE S RFEE
NCIEE
Employees Equally Through a number of pipelines  Working environment, staff's The Group has established a
such as employee hotlines, well-being and job satisfaction  barrier-free communication
seminars, mailboxes and system and process. The
satisfaction surveys, the Group Group provides the employees
establishes communications with psychological counselling
with employees. Also, the services hotline and setting up
Group establishes poverty employee caring centers. All
employee relief fund, employee these Initiatives have helped to
mutual fund and employee improve employees’ sense of
relatives condolence fund belonging to the Group.
8T —REC z@aﬁalﬁwﬁ E#Eg -z IERSE BISNERER ASEEEY—EEEGE
CMBEREEEEBHEHE ITEREE BREMRIE  RELIMR®
%@ W %7 HFR & TR SkEhEER - N B TRIEH
B BIEMHESRET D BB TORRARR
FEEReE i - L ERRET
EEETENRBR -
Suppliers Priorities determined at The Group hosts annual Supplier code of conduct, and  Annual supplier meeting and
the 80/20 rule supplier meeting and carry out  the degree of compliance with  unscheduled SER appraisal will
appraisals laws and regulations be held, in order to make
suppliers well aware of the
Group's requirements for
supply chain.
HrEm IABO/R0KERIBREBRT BMFEHEFGERER HERTRER ERER BNFEREFSHERTE
"eE EﬁE’JSER?ﬁV At e R
EAREYHERNEL -
Customers Service excellence for SER events Suppliers’” SER compliance The Group maintains close

customers
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condition, green product
standards, greenhouse gas
discharge stipulations, as well
as resources and energy
saving

connections with customers,
and accepts enquires from
customers. The Group reports
SER status and downstream
supplier SER management
status to customers.

The Group constantly
reinforces customer services
by providing fast, efficient,
high-quality, economical and
innovative products. The Group
puts active efforts on energy
conservation and emission
reduction, and offers
customers access to low-
carbon products.
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RIE - HERERBWRS

Communication channels

and frequencies

BERBRER

Issues of concern

Rk 3

Efforts and approach
of the Group
EEZHFE

&P

Communities

fad 2

Non-governmental
organisations (NGO)

FEIRFT AR A
(NGO)

NEPRE

Extension of reach by

Company in each of its bases

ARR SBT3
&

Exchanges with the selected
professional NGO on a fair
pbasis with regard to the issue
of concem
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EmRE  REREHE
EIRBERETK)

Depending on annual, quarterly - Environmental protection and
leveraging the presence of the  and monthly plans and

activities

KEE - FERAE
/ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ){

B

Unscheduled call conferences,

as well as yearly SER activities
and appraisal

TEREEEH
SERVEE) )P LL

R EIE

community education

RERERMLEHE

Green products, environmental
protection and employee care

BEES
wE

CIRFRERET

2016 F#H / AR ZERAERAE

HEFREBETHE - pEry
BXEFPER  ARFRE
SERARS K T b7 14 FE % SER
BEAMMR ©

TE R F P R - RHER
=¥ meE - KEE
HAERMRT : G
HEE - AEPRMIVERER

Each of our factory zones will
take part in environmental
protection and green home
activities in joint forces, in an
effort to raise the awareness of
the protection of the
environment among the
community.

In respect of education for the
young people, the Group
spreads the spirit of love
among young people by
helping them go to school
through donations on an
irregular basis.
BEREBEFRR - FMER
BERIES - MBELRER
FERERH o

EELERE L BER
B FRPETELHER
Bf o

The Group is involved in
SER-related activities organised
by NGO in unscheduled
manner. The Group joins
forces with NGO to promote
special environmental issues.
T B2 IINGO 2 i 9 SER
EEEE SRR
REENGO H R -
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EERGREEERE

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of five Directors,
including two executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu David Hang (“Mr. WU"), aged 54, has been appointed as an
executive Director, chairman of the Board, chief executive officer and
authorized representative of the Company with effect from 17 February
2016. He is a vice president of overseas business development of #15A
BEEBAR AT (Zhonghong Zhuoye Group Company Limited*),
which is the controlling shareholder of A SA#ERS A 1D AR A &)
(“Zhonghong Holding Co. Ltd*, “Zhonghong”) and holds approximately
34.51% of the issued shares of Zhonghong. Prior to this, he was an
investment banker, with a focus on cross-border transactions in Asia
markets, especially in China market for many years. From 1996 to 2004,
Mr. Wu served as a vice president of the Corporate Finance and
Investment Banking group at Citigroup. From 2004 to 2007, Mr. Wu
worked as a principal at Marco Polo Partners in New York. From 2007
to 2009, he worked at China Power Development Corp. New York, a
renewable energy development firm, as one of the founding members.
From 2009 to 2015, Mr. Wu served as a managing director of Herakles
Capital Interational, a New York based investment banking firm. Mr. Wu
obtained his MBA degree from University of District of Columbia, USA
and his Bachelor of Science degree from University of Electronic
Science and Technology of China. He is currently an executive director,
chairman of the board of directors, chief executive officer and authorized
representative of Ascent International Holdings Limited (“Ascent”), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code:
0264) and 66.1% owned by Zhonghong.
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Mr. Hou Jian (“Mr. Hou"), aged 30, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 17 February 2016.
He graduated from Inner Mongolia Finance and Economics College with
a bachelor of arts degree in public affairs administration. He served as
an accounting clerk at It R sAEEFR A A (Beiing Zhonghong
Investment Company Limited*), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Zhonghong, from October 2009 to March 2010. He served as an
accountant at Zhonghong from March 2010 to May 2011 and a fund
manager at Zhonghong from June 2011 to February 2015. Since 5
February 2015, he has been serving as a senior fund manager for
Zhonghong. He is currently an executive director and authorized
representative of Ascent.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (“Mr. Wong”), aged 49, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 17 February 2016. He graduated from the University of
Melbourne in 1991 with a bachelor's degree in economics (majoring in
economics and securities law). Mr. Wong is a member of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants (ASCPA) and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has worked
in the several international accountant firms for around 10 years since
his graduation namely PricewaterhouseCoopers (Hong Kong) in 1992,
Arthur Anderson (Hong Kong and Shanghai) from 1993 to 1995,
PricewaternouseCoopers (Beijing) from 1995 to 1996, Emst & Young
(Hong Kong) from 1996 to 1998 and Deloitte from 2000 to 2003. He
specialises in listing audits (primarily for companies in mainland China
seeking to be listed overseas) and financial advisory business for listed
companies, including mergers and acquisitions and restructuring. He
founded a finance and IT subcontracting company in 2003, and
disposed of such business to TMF Group, a leading service
subcontracting consortium in Europe, in 2008. Subsequently, he also
founded several fund management companies including Vantage
Capital Ltd. In 2015, he left the position of managing partner, and
served as a company consultant of Vantage Capital Ltd., focusing on
risks control and corporate strategies. Over the past three years, he
served as director for the following companies listed on (i) the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, namely Western Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code:
2673), and (ii) the Stock Exchange, namely EcoGreen International
Group Limited (stock code: 2341), Biosino Bio-Technology and Science
Incorporation (stock code: 8247), Perfect Optronics Limited (stock
code: 8311), Long Ji Tai He Holding Limited (stock code: 1281),
Golden Resources Development Interational Limited (stock code: 677)
and Beijing North Star Company Limited (stock code: 588). He is
currently serving as independent non-executive director for the following
companies which are listed on the Stock Exchange, namely EcoGreen
International Group Limited (stock code: 2341), Perfect Optronics
Limited (stock code: 8311), Long Ji Tai He Holding Limited (stock code:
1281) and Ascent.
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Mr. Tse Calvin Kai Chuen ("Mr. Tse”), aged 52, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 17 February 2016. Mr. Tse obtained his Bachelor of
Economics degree from Macquarie University, Australia. Mr. Tse is a
member of the Certified Practising Accountants (Australia) and has over
20 years of experience in accounting and finance as well as over 10
years of management experience in computer software and information
technology projects. He worked in Polymedia Presentations Company
as an accountant from 1988 to 1990. He served as a director in
Corporate Comm. Systems, a private company, from 1991 to 2003 and
in HK Rugby Football Union, a non-governmental organization, from
2000 to 2002. In addition, he worked in the following companies which
are listed on the Stock Exchange, () as a finance director in New Times
Group, the holding company of China Innovation Investment Limited
(stock code: 1217) in 2004 and (ii) as a consultant to Haywood
Investments Limited (stock code: 908) in 2005. He also served as a
consultant to Jermajesty Holdings, a subsidiary of GoConnect Holdings
which is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (stock code: ASX-
GCN) from 2013 to 2015.

Mr. Leung Ka Tin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 63, holds a Diploma in
Financial Management. Mr. Leung has over 25 years of management
experience in banking, treasury operation, project finance, logistics and
human resource management. He was a senior management team
member of various financial institutions including First Pacific Group,
Nedcor Asia (previously known as Nedfinance), BfG Germany and Delta
Asla Financial Group as well as companies in the logistics and
telecommunication sectors including EAS Da Tong Group and Trident
Telecom Ventures Limited. Mr. Leung also has extensive experience in
the corporate finance field. He served as directors for the following
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely China Kingstone
Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 1380), Ascent and Wealth Group.
He is currently serving as an independent non-executive director for
PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2078) which is
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management are responsible for the day-to-day management
of the Group’s business.

Mr. Xu Xipeng (FF85HE), aged 51, is the elder brother of Mr. Xu
Xinan. Mr. Xu holds directorship in various subsidiaries of the Company
and Mr. Xu is responsible for the formulation of development strategies
and production management of zipper business. Mr. Xu has over 24
years of experience in the zipper industry, especially on the overall
management and production supervision.

Mr. Xu Xinan (FF825), aged 46, is the younger brother of Mr. Xu
Xipeng. Mr. Xu holds directorship in various subsidiaries of the Company
and Mr. Xu is responsible for sales and marketing and non production
management work of zipper business. Mr. Xu has over 24 years of
experience in the zipper industry especially on the overall management
and sales and marketing.

Mr. Xu Haizhou (#&3#8M), aged 41, joined the Group in May 2010, is
currently responsible for financial management, human resources and
administration management, information technology work of zipper
business. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from
Hubei University in 1999 and thereatfter he was graduated from Sun Yat-
sen University in 2016 and obtained an MBA. Mr. Xu is also a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a certified
tax agent in the PRC.

Mr. Chu Kin Ming, aged 36, was appointed as company secretary
of the Company and authorised representative on 17 February 2016.
Mr Chu is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and has over 12 years of experience in the
field of accounting and financial management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are design, manufacture and sale of finished zippers,
flat knit rilbs and other garment accessories etc. and real estate agency
services in China. The Group’s major customers are OEMs who
manufacture apparel products for (i) apparel brands in China; and (i)
some well known international apparel labels and property developers in
China.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are
set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group during the year, the description of the
future business development, and the risks and uncertainties that the
Group faces are set out in the Chairman’s report and Management
Discussion and Analysis in this report. The particulars of financial risk
management of the Group are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Group'’s Financial highlights on page 5 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
financial position of the Group as at that day are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 92.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance during the year
and material factors underlying its results and financial position are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis of this report.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend any payment of a final dividend (2015:
Nil) in respect of the year 2016 to the Shareholders.

RESERVES
As at 31 December 2016, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$198.2 million (2015: HK$147.2 million). Details of
movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity to the consolidated
financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Group continues to have the concept of ‘Do it for you”, we work for
employees, shareholders, partners and society. To the best knowledge
of the Group, employees, customers and partners are the key to have
continuous sustainable development. We committed to be people
oriented and build up good relationship with employees, and work
together with our partners to provide high quality products and services
to achieve the goal of sustainable development and contribution to the
society.

DONATIONS

Donations by the Group for charitable and other purposes during the
year amounted to HK$11,700 (2015: HK$12,400).

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group paid high attention to environmental protection and energy
conservation to enhance the capacity of sustainable development and
undertake relative social responsibility. Details of the environmental
policy and performance of the Group are set out in the environmental,
social and governance report of this annual report. For the year ended
31 December 2016, our Group did not receive any environmental
penalty.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELATED LAW AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied all related laws and regulations in all material aspects which
may have significant impact on the operation of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEEFRHERD

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers RNEBRMEMBKEERNDRIRETERS KHtE
and suppliers respectively for the two financial years were as follows: EER R ERE M IRBEENT ¢

.|I|n|

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BILEE

2016 2015

% of total % of total

turnover turnover

REEERN (GRS EEN

Bk AL

The largest customer BREPE 5.6 4.8
Five largest customers AREP 18.8 15.0

The information required in paragraph 31(5) of Appendix 16 to the B4 F MR BIMEX 165 31(7) % - LT AR BB 8%
Listing Rules is omitted pursuant to paragraph 31(7) of Appendix 16 to 16 B 31B)ERFIREMNBHAITEE  RRARSE
the Listing Rules since the percentage of total tumover attributable to 2016EF 12 A1 AL EEAAR A LB L %
the five largest customers combined for the year ended 31 December  #EFEHE S L 4718.8% » Bl 30% ©

2016 was approximately 18.8%, i.e. less than 30%.

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2016 2015

% of total % of total

purchase purchase

BB N HBERER

Bot Bok

The largest supplier A ER 12.0 12.7
Five largest suppliers AR IER 46.3 40.2

All of the above five largest suppliers of the Group are independent third — ZNEEE Fit A KB EEH ABIYE=-H - BEESE
parties. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, — FiZ4N » IS B AR QR 2 BITIRAS% A FHE
their associates or any Shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued - FE BB A T ERRER LB ERN K
share capital of the Company, has any interest in any of the Group's five — E£E{F{A] T A FERGF S (TS o

largest suppliers as disclosed above.
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BANK BORROWING
As at 31 December 2016, the Group do not have any bank loan (2015:
HK$15 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land during the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during the year
are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman) (resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Xu Xinan (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert (resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Wu David Hang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Hou Jian (appointed on 17 February 2016)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yang Shaolin (resigned on 17 February 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Bin (resigned on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Kong Hing Ki (resigned on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John (appointed on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Tse Calvin Kai Chuen (appointed on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Leung Ka Tin (appointed on 17 February 2016)

In accordance with articles 87(1) and (2) of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the existing directors shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John and Mr. Tse Calvin Kai
Chuen will retire and being eligible, other themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are set
out on pages 58 to 62 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for directors’
and officers’ liabilities. The permitted indemnity provision is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year ended 31 December 2016
in accordance with the definition in section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangement or
contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or a
connected entity of the Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted as at the end of the year or any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to and including
the date of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to their
qualification, expertise and experience in the industry, competence,
duties and responsibilities within the Group, the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as the market benchmark and the
prevailing market conditions. Employees shall also be eligible to receive
a discretionary year-end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by
the Group at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operating performance, market conditions in which the Group
operates and the individual's performance, payable at such time as the
Group may consider appropriate, and discretionary share options.
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PENSION SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly
basis for its employees. The Group has no further obligation for payment
of post-retirement benefits to employees beyond the aforesaid
contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group and are under the control of an
independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an
employee are each capped at HK$1,500 per month. Members are
entitled to 100% of the employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as
they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all benefits derived from the
mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee reaches
the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at the date of the report, there is no interest of the Directors and
chief executives in the shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ"), as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in
the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at the date of the report, the register maintained under section 336
of the SFO shows that the Company had been notified of the following
substantial Shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and short

TERREREMALTRAERT 2R
DHRMEERG ZERER AR

RAHE BH - RIEE S LT RHIF 336 1FF
BEZELMBTR  AAREMEG NI ETERR R
Hih A2 s RBIEAR B Z B BITHRAE%

positions, representing 5% or more of the Company’s issued share

capital:

LONG POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

LA E -

RAERARGREABRG ZFR

Approximate

percentage
Number of of interest
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares BN
BRRERB g4 BRHHE Aotk
Glory Emperor Trading Limited (“Glory Emperor”) Beneficial owner 326,089,600 75%
BEESHAERAR(BFE]) E=AA
Li Zhen Hong Kong Trading Co., Limited (“Li Zhen”) (Note 1) Interest in controlled 326,089,600 75%
FMERBESERAR(TFED (M) corporation
RGN R 2 s
Shanghai Yongwen Investment Company Limited* Interest in controlled 326,089,600 75%
(“Shanghai Yongwen”) (Note 2) corporation
EEsksRERR AT ([ B8k ) (MEE2) REEHI A E) 2
Beijing Zhonghong Hongyi Investment Company Limited” Interest in controlled 326,089,600 75%
(“Beijing Zhonghong Hongyi”) (Note 3) corporation
IR BLLARIREBR AR SR il NI
(T3bmApahahzk 1) (HI7E3)
Zhonghong (Note 4) Interest in controlled 326,089,600 75%
frah (FtEE4) corporation
REHIA R A
Zhonghong Zhuoye Group Company Limited? Interest in controlled 326,089,600 75%
(“Zhonghong Zhuoye”) (Note 5) corporation
oL R EEEBR AR ([HAE2]) (FHFE5) REHIAR 2 s
Mr. Wang Yong Hong (Note 6) Interest in controlled 326,089,600 75%

ToKA S A& (H5E6)
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i B i& A i
Approximate
percentage
Number of of interest
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares RN
RERER 54 RO E Ao
Keen Concept Enterprise Corp. (“Keen Concept”) (Note 7) Person having a security 391,589,600 90.06%
Keen Concept Enterprise Corp. ([ Keen Concept ) (F17E7) interest in shares
HRHFBERBEER
B A
China Oriental Yunfan Credit Fund L.P Interested in controlled 391,589,600 90.06%
(“China Oriental Yunfan™) (Note 8) corporation
China Oriental Yunfan Credit Fund L.P Ak | NI ol 2
([ China Oriental Yunfan) (Fft 3 8)
CNCO Capital International (“CNCO Capital”) (Note 9) Interested in controlled 391,589,600 90.06%
CNCO Capital Intemnational ([ CNCO Capital ) (HfzE9) corporation
A k| NI ol 2
Arren Holdings Corporation Limited Interested in controlled 391,589,600 90.06%
(“Arren Holdings ") (Note 10) corporation
Arren Holdings Corporation Limited ([ Arren Holdings J) SR il NG
(HIzE10)
Champ Link Holdings Inc. (“Champ Link”) (Note 11) Interested in controlled 391,689,600 90.06%
Champ Link Holdings Inc. ([ Champ LinkJ) (F5E11) corporation
| NI 2
CNIC Corporation Limited (“CNIC Corporation”) (Note 10) Interested in controlled 391,589,600 90.06%
BB E AR AR (BT EE ) (i 10) corporation
Ak | NI ol 2
China Orient Asset Management (International) Holding Limited  Interested in controlled 391,589,600 90.06%
(“China Orient”) (Note 12) corporation
FRERAFEEERE (BB IERERAR([HEE]) SRl NGl
(M¥sE12)
Wise Leader Assets Ltd. (“Wise Leader”) (Note 13) Interested in controlled 391,689,600 90.06%
Wise Leader Assets Ltd. ([Wise Leader ) (FzE13) corporation
SR il NG
Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Limited Interested in controlled 391,689,600 90.06%

(“Dong Yin") (Note 12&13)
HIRERE (LR BR AR (TR ) (MIFE12 % 13)

corporation

el INCIw:
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Approximate
percentage
Number of of interest
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares RN
RERER 14 RHHE Bo
China Orient Asset Management Co., Limited Interested in controlled 391,589,600 90.06%
(“COAM”)(Note 14) corporation
PERAEEEREARAR([RERAEEERE]) (M 14) RIERI QAR 2R
Farco Holdings Limited (Note 15) Beneficial owner 35,260,000
Farco Holdings Limited (Ffi 3% 15) BEmEAA
Dong Yu (Note 15) Interested in controlled 35,260,000
=/ (FzE15) corporation
e VNCIw £
Notes: Kz -
1. Li Zhen wholly owns Glory Emperor. 1) FIE 2 B L o
2. Shanghai Yongwen wholly owns Li Zhen. 2 KN EHEEFIE -
3. Beijing Zhonghong Hongyi wholly owns Shanghai Yongwen. 3 LR B EEE AKX o
4, Zhonghong wholly owns Beijjing Zhonghong Hongyi. 4. 2 DB TG o
. Zhonghong Zhuoye holds approximately 26.55% interest in Zhonghong. 5. e B gk A rh 2 4906, 65% 125 o
6. Mr. Wang Yong Hong wholly owns Zhonghong Zhuoye. 6. FKAT D B R o) 852 o
7. Keen Concept is wholly owned by China Oriental YunfFan. 7 China Oriental YunFan % B ## Keen Concept *
8. China Oriental Yunfan is 98%-owned by CNCO Capital. s CNCO Capital #4 China Oriental Yunfan 98% 2% o
9. CNCO Capital is 51%-owned by Champ Links and 49%-owned by Arren Holdings. 9 Champ Links & Arren Holdings % Bl # % CNCO Capital
51% K 49% ez -
10. Arren Holdings is wholly owned by CNIC Corporation. 10, [ S 2 A A Arren Holdings °
11. Champ Link is wholly owned by China Orlent. 11, o [F 2 B Champ Link »
12, China Orient is 50%-owned by Wise Leader and 50%-owned by Dong Yin. 12, Wise Leader & B3R 53 Bl & o B3 75 50% J% 50% $E 25 o
13. Wise Leader is wholly owned by Dong Yin. 13, HIRD B Wise Leader ©
14. Dong Yin is wholly owned by COAM. 14. R REEIELEHEER -
15, Falcon Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Dong Yu. 15. B2 BE B Falcon Holdings Limited °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had registered an interest or a short position
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company which
was required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or which was required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and/or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures”
above and “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2016 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective associates nor was the Company and
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, or their respective associates to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

() CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE OPERATING LEASE IN
RESPECT OF CERTAIN PLANT AND BUILDINGS
On 28 December 2015, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan, senior
management of the Group, as lessors and KEE Guangdong as
lessee, entered into the lease renewal agreement (the
‘Guangdong Lease Renewal Agreement”) to renew the lease of
the Guangdong Plant for a further term of three years from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2018 for a monthly rental of
RMB310,000.

An independent valuer advised that the monthly rental of
RMB310,000 is fair and reasonable with reference to the market
rate. For each of three years ending 31 December 2018, the
annual rental paid and payable by the Group under the Lease
Renewal Agreement is RMB3,720,000.

During the year, the rental paid by the Group under the
Guangdong Lease Renewal Agreement is RMB3,720,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,342,000).
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B HEMER  2EmEHe - ARAR
310,000 B A FEE - RE E20184F
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AEBEN KEMFRS A ARES 720,000
I o

TR AEBAEREAREIANESSE
A ARG 720,000 (FE 474,342,000
BIT) ©
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On 13 January 2016, Classic Winner, a company owned as to
50% and 50% by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively, as
lessor and KEE Zippers, an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
as lessee entered into the a lease agreement in relation to the
lease of the property in Hong Kong with the rent for the first year
being HK$1. On 17 February 2016, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan resigned as the chairman of the board and chief executive
officer of the Company respectively. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan also resigned as executive directors of the Company, but
have remained as the directors of KEE International (BVI) Limited
("KEE Interational BVI") and KEE Zippers, the subsidiaries of the
Company since 17 February 2016. Therefore Classic Winner is a
connected person of the Company as of the date of the lease
agreement.

On 18 January 2016, Nanhai Jinheming, a company owned as to
50% and 50% by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively, as
lessor and KEE (Zhejiang) Garment Accessories Limited (“KEE
Zhejiang”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, as lessee
entered into the a lease agreement in relation to the lease of the
land use rights and the buildings and facility located at Jiashan
County, Zhejiang Province, PRC with the first year as the rent free
period. Therefore Nanhai Jinheming is a connected person of the
Company as of the date of the lease agreement.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE COOPERATION AGREEMENT
On 12 July 2016, Tianjin Vitality Marketing Consultancy Company
Limited (“Tianjin Vitality”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Yumafang Property Company Limited
("“Yumafang Property”), entered into the cooperation agreement
(the “Cooperation Agreement”), pursuant to which Yumafang
Property agreed to engage Tianjin Vitality in providing promotion,
marketing and planning related services for the property
development projects conducted by Yumafang Property for a term
of one year commencing from the date of the Cooperation
Agreement. Yumafang Property agreed to engage Tianjin Vitality
as an agent to provide the following services (the “Services”) to
the Yumafang Property: (i) the online and offline advertising and
promotion activities, event organisation, planning, marketing,
promotion planning, brand building and promotion of the
Yumafang Property; and (i) the online and offline advertising and
promotion activities, event organisation, planning, marketing,
promotion planning for the property development projects
conducted by Yumafang Property. The service fee charged by
Tianjin Vitality will be 6.5% of the cooperation expenses incurred
by Tianjin Vitality for carrying out the Services, which will not
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exceed RMB325,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$380,000)
based on the maximum amount of the agreed expenses of
RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,850,000) for
carrying out the Services incurred by Tianjin Vitality.

Zhonghong, a controlling shareholder of the Company, indirectly
owns the entire equity interest in Yumafang Property. Accordingly,
Yumafang Property is a connected person of the Company and
the entering into of the Cooperation Agreement constituted a
continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details can be referred to the
announcement of the Company dated 12 July 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Cooperation under
the Cooperation Agreement has not been commenced and no
service fee charge by Tianjin Vitality.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE FRAMEWORK COOPERATION
AGREEMENT

On 29 July 2016, Tianjin Vitality and Zhonghong entered into the
framework cooperation agreement (as amended and
supplemented) (the “Framework Cooperation Agreement”),
pursuant to which Zhonghong has agreed to engage Tianjin
Vitality as the exclusive agent for the sales of the property projects
developed by the Zhonghong and its subsidiaries (the
“Zhonghong Group”) including the related sales planning,
organisation, promotion and sales activities for the period
commencing from the effective date to 31 December 2017 (as
amended and supplemented).

The Zhonghong Group shall pay to Tianjin Vitality a commission
ranging from 5.5% to 6.5% of the sales amounts received by the
Zhonghong Group for the sales of properties. If the property
projects developed by the Zhonghong Group are sold at a price
exceeding the price agreed by Zhonghong Group and Tianjin
Vitality, Tianjian Vitality shall be entitled to receive an excess sales
equal to 20% to 40% of the excess sales amount received by the
Zhonghong Group.

The Framework Cooperation Agreement has been approved by
Shareholders on EGM which were held on 5 January 2017,
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The Company has complied with the relevant requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, including the annual caps, and will
re-comply with the relevant rules of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
(including independent Shareholders’ approval requirements if
applicable) if the annual caps are exceeded, or when the relevant
agreement for continuing connected transaction expires or is renewed
or when there is a material change to the terms of the relevant
agreement for continuing connected transaction.

ANNUAL REVIEW

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that these transactions were entered into:

() in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) onnormal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the Renewal Agreement and the Master
Agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

KPMG, the auditor of the Company, was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor of the Company have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The auditors’
letter confirms that, in respect of the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company's board of
directors.

o} nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group.
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© nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

d. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions having exceeded the annual caps.

OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, the related-
party transactions set out in notes 10,14, 22(f) and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements also include transactions which did
not constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of other related-party transactions entered into
by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016, which did not
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are set out in notes 10, 14, 22(f) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 16 January 2017, Classic Winner, a company owned as to 50%
and 50% by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively, as lessor and
KEE Zippers, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
lessee entered into the HK Lease Renewal Agreement pursuant to
which Classic Winner has agreed to lease to KEE Zippers a property in
Hong Kong at a monthly rental of HK$51,000 payable within the 16th of
each month for an initial term of three years commencing on 16 January
2017 to 15 January 2020. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan were then
the directors of KEE BVI and KEE Zippers and were executive Directors
of the Company in the past 12 months and therefore Classic Winner
were connected persons of the Company as of the date of HK Lease
Renewal Agreement. An independent property valuer advised that the
monthly rental of HK$51,000 is fair and reasonable with reference to the
market rate. For each of the three years ending 15 January 2020, the
maximum annual aggregate amounts payable by the Group under the
HK Lease Renewal Agreement was as follows:
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HK$
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Year ending 15 January 2018 B(E 2018 1 H156HIEFE 612,000
Year ending 15 January 2019 (£ 20196 1 H15HILFE 612,000
Year ending 16 January 2020 B E 2020 1 A 16 HILFE 612,000
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On 16 January 2017, Nanhai Jinheming, a company owned as to 50%
and 50% by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively, as lessor and
KEE Zhejiang, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
lessee entered into the PRC Lease Renewal Agreement pursuant to
which Nanhai Jinheming has agreed to lease to KEE Zhejiang the
production base in Zhejiang Province at a monthly rental of
RMB275,000 payable within the first 10 working days before the 16th
day of each month for an initial term of three years commencing on 16
January 2017 to 15 January 2020. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan
were then the directors of KEE BVI and KEE Zippers and were executive
Directors of the Company in the past 12 months and therefore Nanhai
Jinheming were connected persons of the Company as of the date of

R2017E1A168 - HHEABEESHA(—KA
FFiBNE S MR IH R o £ B 50% K 50% HE
HWAR) BEABRARSINT(AARRMHEELE
MEBAR I THRBSESR G B B85
MEAEREZERMASHIHEENTAEEREM - K
VB ERB20175 1 A16 B £ 2202051 A 15
RIEAB=F BENEA16BATE 10EIIEANR
BN S B ARME2750007T © FF85 06 5L 4 M FF
R EERAKEE BULKHASNENEEIT RE

E+EARARRNMITES - RitFE5 M
AN B EERHE A HARNRRMNEEAL -

BUMEMLEMSE  AEARK 2750002

PRC Lease Renewal Agreement. An independent property valuer RBHEHRBATASIE - REZE2020F1 A158 1k
advised that the monthly rental of RMB275,000 is fair and reasonable ={EFE  ANEBRTPEBEEH I EENEFD
with reference to the market rate. For each of the three years ending 15 FEE @0 T -
January 2020, the maximum annual aggregate amounts payable by the
Group under the PRC Lease Renewal Agreement was as follows:
RMB HKS$

AR BT
Year ending 16 January 2018 B{Z 2018 1 A 16 HILFE 4,125,000 4,620,000
Year ending 15 January 2019 (£ 2019F 1 A 16 HILFE 4,125,000 4,620,000
Year ending 15 January 2020 = 2020F 1 A 16 HILFE 4,125,000 4,620,000

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally adopted by the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder
of the Company passed on 14 December 2010, pursuant to which the
Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it may think
fit, grants options to any employee(s) (whether full time or part time
including any Director) of any member of the Group at the exercise price
for such number of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Board to grant options to selected employee(s)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
40,000,000 Shares which represents approximately 9.2% of the Shares
in issue on the date of this report. The maximum number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant. Save
as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the grant of the
relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an option is
exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty- one
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable to our Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always
that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of the option, which must be
a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant,
provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less than the
nominal amount of one Share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share option was
granted by the Company. As at 31 December 2016, there is no
outstanding share option.

Details of movements for the year ended 31 December 2016 in the
number of share options are set out below:
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 saved for the share option
scheme previously mentioned, the Company has not entered into the
equity-linked agreements, and there did not subsist any equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company as at 31 December 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Upon the close of the mandatory cash offers made by Glory Emperor,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, on 17 February 2016, there
were 43,214,000 Shares in the hands of the public, representing
approximately 9.94% of the entire issued share capital of the Company.
The Company therefore cannot fulfill the minimum public float
requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. The Stock
Exchange has granted a waiver from strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1)
(a) of the Listing Rules for a period from 17 February 2016 to 30 May
2016.

Glory Emperor has engaged Mason Securities Limited as placing agent
to place up to 65,500,000 shares to six independent places (the
‘Placing”), representing approximately 15.06% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Immediately after the completion of the Placing,
108,714,400 Shares, representing 25.00% of the total issued share
capital of the Company, will be held by the public. Upon completion of
the Placing, the Company will restore its minimum public float of 25% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as required under Rule
8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirmed that the Company had maintained a sufficient
amount of public float for its shares as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the period after the completion of the Placing.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014, 2015, and 2016 has been audited by KPMG. KPMG will retire as
auditors of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re- appointment of KPMG as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Wu David Hang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
KEE Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of KEE Holdings
Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 89 to 174, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘the Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman lIslands, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

82

KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT

FRZERERIFDVERRZ
B AR E
(RASEHETMALAER LA

=R

TIZEEN (A TEE R EFEZTREQRR
FIAEEBERZERBRAR(ERAR LD ER
EMBAR(HABAIEEE]) MIRE I BRE -
EEE B REABIER20165F 12 A31 BHERE
PR REHEZAILFENGEERR &
ARG hEMEANGEER FEEREBR KL
GHESRER  UREEUBHRERMT  B2E=E
ZEBRBEREMBRER -

BMRE  HEVBEHREREREREESSTM
~e (gt e ) BHOE BT BREE
AN EEMBRELEADEEMAAMRBES
ER2016F 12 31 AMERAMBHRRL  RES
EHEZHLEFENGAVBRABEAESR
2 WEEREB(RAKIDNEZRRTL AR
‘%1 °

RRER
HMERBEFESAMOSHMOHEBREER
(TEBZBER D ETER - RAINZKFERR
THEEEARS [ ZBMAELEEPBRE
AAEMEE] — 8P - REFAEFTMRE
ZBEEmEET(T D EHEFETE
MEEMEZEAMBERREANERER
PIBUNESRE  IYEBEZFZRETRET
HipEmE M - HAAE - RAMESNEZR
EFRRMEE AR PINERITHER -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS
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B2 EEN RS

FRREZEIR

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, AREZEEESEEERMOELHE  RAY
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial HRELGREBEREROBREAEENSEIE - 25
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed inthe HEEZEARMPEZBEEEAWHKERLEASR
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,  BFETRIEH - BRI T @ W ZEFHEIREHEBFBH =
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate R, o

opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition on sales of goods

HEEmz WaER

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 114.
BRI A MEN T2 RE 114 HRYEEHBE ©

The Key Audit Matter
ERELSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTNEESE

The Group recognises revenue on sales
of goods when the risks and rewards of
ownership of the zippers and other
related products, which the Group sells,
have been transferred to customers,
which generally occurs when the goods
are accepted by the customers for
domestic sales and when the goods are
loaded on shipping vessels for export
sales.

EEEEMENBENHMERERNE
B EFERERER TEPR  BER
BEPEMEMIERNENLE mEMIEINH

- BEREERHER MRS -

There is a risk that revenue may be
intentionally overstated because of
pressure on management to achieve
performance targets for the financial
reporting period.
FElEEREHNER VRS MR
48 B IR HYER 71T AT RE AR 55 R UNES ©

We identified revenue recognition on
sales of goods as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk of
manipulation of the timing of recognition
of revenue by management to meet
specific targets or expectations.
BPKIEEE R WantERy SRS
B ARlasESENAREN
BRZ— MERIREBREREIR
TE B 13 o T8 B i 452 12 A o e SR R P ) ()
ARk -

Our audit procedures assess the recognition of revenue on sales of goods included
the following:

HAFHEEERZ WERRANEZEFEBEATIM

o assessing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over revenue recognition;

o HMAMERHERZ EEAEESIARET - B MR

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific sales of goods transactions
around the end of the financial reporting period had been recognised in the
appropriate period by inspecting the terms of sale as set out in the underlying
sales contracts and the signed acknowledgement of delivery or emails from
customers confirming acceptance of the goods for domestic sales or
customs declaration forms confirming the loading of the goods on shipping
vessels for export sales;

o  HBRSIHEEEESRMFEEERARE P, EZNRTER I+ (1#R
BEMEmIENE)SUBMBRER (BREmEMIEINE) - MR ERI R
BREPRARNFETERHER SRR NEE M HARER

° comparing, on a sample basis, sales of goods transactions recorded during
the financial reporting period with the corresponding customers’ signed
acknowledgement of delivery or emails from customers confirming
acceptance of the goods for domestic sales or customs declaration forms
confiming the loading of the goods on shipping vessels for export sales and
the related sales invoices; and

e HBRUELMBREHAMEESERHEERHEEFPEZNEERINER
M (EREMNERENHE) B PRE (BREmEMIEINE) KB
FHEERE &

o inspecting all manual adjustments to revenue raised during the reporting
period, enquiring of management as to the reasons for such adjustments and
comparing the details of the adjustments with the relevant underlying
documentation.

e BRERSHAHKEMENMEFDAE MEREEAIELAMAR
BIR R R LR PR B B ARRE S RS o

2016 £/ MrzRERArE 83



Kee

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 108.
B AT REN T 13 K E 108 BRI ER

The Key Audit Matter
BREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTNEELE

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in the
consolidated financial statements. The
net carrying value of inventories at 31
December 2016 was approximately
HK$19 million.

VAR & B 75 3k AR B 2 B A 3R 56
TEE’JW;&%)\EE ° 2016 12 A31 BTF
EEREFEL A 19,000,000 7T °

The Group’s inventories comprise zippers
and other related products which are to
be sold to original equipment
manufacturers ("OEM”) of clothing brands.
The future saleability of inventories is
subject to changing consumer
preferences and fashion trends.
SEFEBFEEE TREMERIAR
ﬁ%LﬁU@MDm?%&ﬁ@m%
Em  FERRESHENANE PR
PR R B B o

Management judgement is required to
assess the appropriate level of
provisioning for items of inventory which
may be ultimately destroyed or sold
below cost as a result of a reduction in
demand arising from unfavourable
changes in consumer preferences.
Consequently, there is a risk that the
carrying value of inventories exceeds its
net realisable value.

B EBAMNEEE NS B ENKTEA

HEITHE ﬁ%¢%&lﬁ§%ﬁ%?
R E B EHE T D T A RE SR AR SH R B

RERKAEHE - Bl - FEFER
B A R FENER -
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories included the following:

B FERENEZREFBEEATIE :

enquiring of management about the assumptions and bases adopted for
assessing inventory provisions for finished goods, work-in-progress and raw
materials and considering the consistency of the application of the Group’s
inventory provisioning policy and the rationale for writing off inventories;
MERES MATEKm E@%&Eﬁﬂf 5 R FTER A BV RER I B
NRkEEEXEEFERBRERARSS —BRMBEFENRE ;

recalculating the inventory provision with reference to the policies and
parameters in the Group’s inventory provisioning policy and considering the
Group’s inventory provisioning policy with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

2EEEB T ERBICR ¢mﬁvﬁﬂyi%ﬁ§%
SR ERGEEREFERBEIR

EREL2ERT

assessing, on a sample basis, whether the selected items on the inventory
ageing report were classified within the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing individual items with the dates on the respective production
reports and goods receipt notes;
FBLLEREREE SHE+ERE RERKIE B AMETEES
FEEE RE N BEREERKER

S ERBR RS

attending the year end inventory count, observing the relevant controls
implemented by management and identifying slow-moving and damaged
inventories through imspection and enquiry of the warehouse staff;
SEFRGFERY BEERETRNEBZEHREEBERENEN
e)%/\/%;%u/%iﬁ&x%ﬁff ;

evaluating the inventory provisioning policy by comparing management's
forecasts of the amounts of raw materials and finished goods which will not
e consumed or sold with historical consumption rates for the past 12-month
period;
@ﬂﬁmaﬁFﬁﬁMﬂ&Wm%%ﬂ?ﬁﬁ%tﬁ%)MENﬁ
18 A HARE R OB RE R b 7 B BB ER
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The Key Audit Matter
HRELBH

Kee
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR R GRS

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTNEREL A

We identified assessing the valuation of
inventories as a key audit matter because
of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and because of the
significant management judgement
involved in determining the level of any
provisions required at the end of the
reporting period.

BB EFEMES SBREZEE
REBGEMBHRENEEE RETR
EHRREBEKTESIRNERNERE
FE -

comparing, on a sample basis, the carrying amounts of selected items on the
inventory list as at the reporting date with selling prices achieved subsequent
1o the reporting date and related confirmed sale orders; and
MEEREARFERMEEE RNERGEBPRRERNEEB R
FAMERHERE &

considering the historical accuracy of provisions for inventories made by
management at the end of the previous financial year by comparing the actual
inventory loss during the current year with the provisions for inventories as at
31 December 2015 and assessing whether there were indications of
management bias in making provisions for inventories.

BB AFEEREFERXE0F12ANBNTERE 8T
BEBENR E—MBFERMEFERENERYE KT HEEURAE

TNEREBMARFERBEFERSR -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

mENBBRUMEMERREK
P90 bt 3% L B9 4% BB 3R &

EEAHHEMENRERT - RENEBRER
TEENMAEER  BETEREEMBREN
AL B h O B ED RS -

BAEEEMBRRIFHMNBERLREBEMBE
o BT EMERERTATANERER -

‘AR MERAMBERRNES  RMANEEE
FIEEMES  HUERT  EEEMESRS
HFE M HEHRRARMEBRTRETATHENIE
AEFEEABEAEUTFEERNERRANIE

ERHBMABHTHITHE  MREFRBREMESR
FHEEAR#ERRL  RAFEREZEE - &S
S BFPRBEMARE -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such intemal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

VR R GRS

RHE B ARES M B RRARE
HEE (&)

BPBRBEEERBENETERN Iz =
EREXRAE  EEEFZARETHBERRE
& o AT

o HAIAFHE ARG IR MBS VTS
WERGFAEEARERRARRS - &5 RTT
BT AEEELERR - A RERZT M
HEENERE ERARMERNERM - A
REFFrIBE P RSB BE  BEER &
bRt - g BERNEBIES 2 £ - FitAREE
IR A G M S B E R SE R PR AL R BE =
AR BB IR R S5 ER G BUA) B A S8 AR Bt /9
[E\Bg

o  THRERZBRENABES AR E
BEZEF  BXFEARYE IW*IQ %lJE’J
BRMBERER -

o HEFTAESHERRELRE  UWREFMIE
HHEHAEEMERREESAE -

s HEERAFELESTERNBE L
i o REBIERMBNRE  BEREF
ERFELBFREBENENTEEME - 1M
AR E RENFELERNELER
S8 RKMRRBTFEERTHEEME - Al
BURBEZBMBETRBEREIZEFS
MEBTOEBEEE - REBEORET

R ARMEZSERIFBEREER - RFIW
%Eﬁ%%%ﬁ%{ﬁﬂi#ﬁiﬁtﬁﬁﬂl E’J%.ﬁr%

RS o AT ARBEXBERATELERE
TREFFBISE -

o  HERAMBmKR(BREENEE)WERS J
W} RBUAS  UREEVBHRERES
RAMWRRIBERZ N FH -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Li Shiu Chung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

l‘/_ﬁ E

i %

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE 20164 12 A 31 A LLFE (LA THIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
Notes $’000 $000
BsE T SR
Revenue Wz 2 153,198 159,016
Cost of sales HEK AR (111,490) (110,919
Gross profit EX 41,708 48,097
Other income Hiplg A 3 7,552 5,056
Distribution costs PR (10,989) (12,230)
Administrative expenses TR X (42,054) (33,746)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEM B AR A IS 23 17,837 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HE K& R
plant and eguipment and HE L FEIES WS
leasehold land to related parties 10(a) 17,609 -
Profit from operations KRR 31,663 777
Finance costs B 155 A AR 4(a) (9) (420)
Profit before taxation R B AT R A 31,654 6,757
Income tax PG (8,417) (3,517)
Profit for the year F 5 A 23,237 3,240
Attributable to: AR & E R
Equity shareholders of the Company — ZNA FIRE SRR ER 21,940 4,161
Non-controlling interests JEPEAR RS 1,297 (921)
Profit for the year FREF 23,237 3,240
Earnings per share (HK cents) &RZER G&1l) 8
Basic HK 5.1 1.0
Diluted i3 5.0 1.0
The notes on pages 97 to 174 form part of these financial statements. FIOTENTAB M BR AN B RE s —HD -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEmkEMETEWNER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE20169 12 A31 BLLFE UAETIIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
$'000 $000
Fr Tt
Profit for the year FRER 23,237 3,240
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEEKWA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HEgowEN BEEEZNER
to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation of the —RE R B KFEME A TR
financial statements of subsidiaries in the BSmRBEENER ZH
mainland China (29,924) (20,727)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHWAEEE (6,687) (17,481)
Attributable to: AR & E PR
Equity shareholders of the Company RAEIERRER (4,717) (15,167)
Non-controlling interests JEEAR fE (1,970) (2,314)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHWAEEE (6,687) (17,481)
The notes on pages 97 to 174 form part of these financial statements. FOE1TAB2MFBRATBHREK 2 —2H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF F|NANC|AL POSITION
e SRR R

At 31 December 2016 b"\2016$12ﬂ 31 B (A TTHIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
Notes $°000 $000
B 5T T S IE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENRERE 10 57,323 195,813
Interests in leasehold land held for BIEgEHEEZ
own use under operating leases B AT E RS 10 - 30,453
57,323 226,266
Intangible assets mEE 1 3,047 6,161
Prepayments for property, Y - BB MR ER
plant and equipment B FRIB 93 280
Deferred tax assets R TEEE 15(c) 2,985 1,435
63,448 234,142
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 13 19,417 15,874
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b fE UG Fi1E 14 135,759 32,014
Current tax recoverable BNEA AT Uk [ F2 18 15(a) 38 1,007
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEY 16 186,496 85,894
Assets held for sale BIEEEEE 17 602 -
342,312 134,789
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowing ﬂ??ﬂﬁﬁ 18 - 15,000
Trade and other payables B 5 M EMERFRIE 19 84,955 39,937
Current tax payable Eﬂ HpE S R IR 15(a) 1,392 285
86,347 55,222
Net current assets ne&EE®&E 255965 | 79 667
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 319,413 313,709
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R a AR R 3R

At 31 December 2016 R 20164 12 A 31 B (A TIIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
Notes $°000 $000
B 5T T T
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE 15(c) 1,124 682
Net assets EEFE 318,289 313,027
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E 22
Share capital A% A 4,348 4,268
Reserves s 294,175 286,589
Total equity attributable to equity RATEZRER
shareholders of the Company iR 298,523 290,857
Non-controlling interests FEIERER 19,766 22,170
Total equity EREE 318,289 313,027

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17

March 2017.
Mr. Wu David Hang Mr. Hou Jian
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Executive Director

The notes on pages 97 to 174 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n‘/T\

SEERBE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE 20164 12 A 31 A LLFE (A THIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Attioutable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARFEERRERE
Non-
Share Share Ceptdl  Statutoy  Bxchange  Refained controling Totd
capta  premium resene resene fesene  eamings Tot  inferests equity
by} &% EE E5 2 FER s
e if Fife L 1 B 3t s 2%
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i3 i i i i i i i i i
Balance at 1 January 2015 R201551 51 AEE 4150 138,09 21,936 18,123 36,783 88716 307804 24480 832288
Changes in equity for 2015 20155 HEREE
Proft for the year il - - - - - 4,161 4161 91) 3,240
Other comprehensive income Efp2EEA - - - - (1938 - (19328 (1398 0721)
Total comprenensive income 2EHNEE - - - - (1938 4161 (15167) (314 (17481)
Appropriation to statutory reserve AEEEERE - - - 1431 - (1431) - - -
Dividends declared in respect SLEEERMES
of the previous year - (8522 - - - - (8522 - (8522)
Equity setfled share-based transactions NEREERNTNNRS 28 - - (593) - - - (593) - (593)
Share options lapsed during the year RERKREERE 20 - - (70) - - 0 - - -
Shares issued under share option REBRETEART
scheme Kk 220) 118 9518 (2.301) - - - 7.3% - 7.33%
Balance at 31 December 2015 R2015512A31 &R 4208 139,092 18972 19,064 17,485 91516 290867 2170 813027
The notes on pages 97 to 174 form part of these financial statements. BT EN74B 2 Wi BK A BHREx T —2 5D
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CONSOUDLA\TED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
n‘/T\ *E/\%D"‘Eb%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z 20164 12 A 31 HIEFE (LAE T R)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAARERRER
Non-
Share Share  Capital Statutory Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamings Total interests equity
ke &% R i) Re FER B

kA & i i i & &t it 48
Note $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
iz T T T T T T T T T

Balance at 1 January 2016 H2016%1 51 ALE 4268 139,002 18972 19554 17,455 91516 200,857 22,170 313,027
Changes in equity for 2016 20165 HEREE

Proft for e year EREH - 5 - - - 21000 21040 1207 23237

Other comprehensive income Ef2EMA - - - - (26,657) - (26,657)  (3,267)  (29,924)
Total comprehensive income ETO - - - - (26,657 21,940  (4717)  (1,970)  (6,687)
Appropriation o statutory resenve AREETRE - = - 2807 - (2807) = = =
Share options lapsed during the year RERKHNERE 220e) - - (243) - - 243 - - -
Shares issued Under share option REBRETEART

scheme R 20 80 12708 (3,087) - - - 9 - 9
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBLA 23 - - (209) - - - (209)  (22,170) (22,379
Disposal of nterest in a subsidary AERESIEERTIE

wihout loss of contol WEATES 20 - - 2891 - - - 2801 2073 24627
Balance at 31 December 2016 R2016 512531 RER 4,348 151,800 18,324 22,361 (9,202) 110,892 298,523 19,766 318,289
The notes on pages 97 to 174 form part of these financial statements. BT EN74B 2 Wit AN Sz 2 — 55
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NT\

ERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE 20164 12 A 31 A LLFE (A THIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
Notes $°000 $000
B aE Fr e
Operating activities KeEES
Profit before taxation B 758 BT 5 ) 31,654 6,757
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Depreciation and amortisation e N Y 4(c) 13,027 18,124
Impairment losses charged on property, VI - BB REERE
plant and equipment [ SE=EN 4(c) 4,513 -
Impaiment losses charged B 5 R H b EWGRIE R E
on trade and other receivables EEET A 4(c) 1,034 168
Impaiment losses charged FEREEBE A (EE)
on/(written back) inventories 13 508 (182)
Finance costs B A5 RN 4(a) 9 420
Interest income FLEHA 3 (1,231) (1,879)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BEMERE
equipment and leasehold land BEE RS 10(a) (13,462) (26)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB ARk 23 (17,837) -
Equity settled share-based payment RS ER G A X
expenses 4(b) - (593)
Foreign exchange gain AN U 2 (10,689) (4,266)
Expense incurred for the professional TR EEHEEERFT
fees related to investing activities EERRE 1,007 -
Expense incurred for the professional TRE R EEBRM
fees related to financing activities EEMHAX 503 -
Changes in working capital EEESEE 9,036 18,523
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEMm,/ B (5,375) 2,540
(Increase)/decrease In trade and B 5 R EH A FEUWGRIR
other receivables (), (120,881) 8,570
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 NEMERFRIE
other payables #hn, CRid) 67,697 (6,009)
Cash (used in)/generated from e (i), FER$
operations (49,523) 23,624
Income tax paid BEEH 15(a) (7,450) (2,475)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (A, e
operating activities HeFE
(56,973) 21,149
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CONSOUDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & ZE 20164 12 A 31 A IEFE (LABTTHIR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
Notes $°000 $000
B sE T Tt
Investing activities RETE
Payment for the purchase of property, BEWME  HE MR ENERK
plant and equipment (8,533) (10,625)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEME  BENMKRER
equipment and leasehold land HE TS IE 71,766 146
Payment for the professional fees related HEEBEEBEBNMNK
to investing activities (1,707) -
Interest received B HFILE 1,231 2,677
Decrease in deposits with banks IRITEM TR = 41,158
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, HEW BRI ZFTEFIE -
net of cash RIS 90,266 -
Payments on taxes for sale of property, HEWE  BELRER
plant and equipment and leasehold land HE T A IE R (4,615) -
Net cash generated from investing RETHMEBHRESEE
activities 148,408 33,356
Financing activities RLESEE
Proceed from bank borrowing IRITIEEAS %h\ £ 18 = 15,000
Repayment for bank borrowing EBERTEE 18 (15,000) (17,000)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders RS T AR $ =R AR B
of the Company - (8,5622)
Payment for the professional fees BEEBHEEERRNH
related to financing activities (854) -
Proceeds from exercise of employes TR B RERE TS 5IE
share options 9,701 7,335
Proceeds from sale of interest in TERESIEBERATEE
subsidiary without loss of control B8 A Rl 2 FTiS 5/ 0E 24,627 -
Interest paid ERFLE (9) (422)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BmEFHRE (FTA)
financing activities REFE 18,465 (3,609)
Net increase in cash and ReRBESEEYFEEM
cash equivalents 109,900 50,896
Cash and cash equivalents at RM1B1ENBEERBESEEY
1 January 85,894 37,975
Effect of foreign exchange EREFHNLE
rate changes (9,298) (2,977)
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31HHWES
at 31 December RBRSZEEY 16 186,496 85,894
The notes on pages 97 to 174 form part of these financial statements. FIOTENTAB M BR AN B RE s —HD -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT 75 ¥ 7= MY et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 TEe€3HBZE
(a) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (a) SHER

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“The Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 7= My et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

1

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(b) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise KEE Holdings Company Limited
("the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
“the Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 1(1)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 29.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs THAT ARE
FIRST EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
ACCOUNTING PERIOD

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have had
a material effect on how the Group's results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those retumns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 7= My et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(d) SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset, or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(h)(il)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (note 1 (h)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and the borrowing costs (note 1(g)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

— Leasehold improvement is depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

— Machinery 10 years

— Vehicles and other equipment 4 — 5 years
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 7= My et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br =B

FiBESRAE T E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
() PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

)

(CONTINUED)

Construction in progress (“CIP") represents property, plant
and equipment under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at cost less any impairment losses (note 1(n)

(i).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction during the
construction period. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the CIP is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research and development costs comprise all costs that
are directly attributable to research and development
activities or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
such activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s
research and development activities, the criteria for the
recognition of such costs as an asset are generally not met
until late in the development stage of the project when the
remaining development costs are immaterial. Hence both
research costs and development costs are generally
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1 (h)(ii).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. Computer software is
amortised from the date it is available for use and its
estimated useful life is 5 to 10 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

OPERATING LEASE CHARGES

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives recelved are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

(i Impairment of current and non-current receivables
Current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

1 FESTHBERE)

(9)

(h)

KEeHERX
TEBRMARNERE Y ARNE
WO TN BEREEHE -

EAKBEREEHERE  KIFE
HppFEARKRUENEENGENZF
REMEEERBMENER - T8
HENREZEERMRENSTF
HMAFBEY ML ARG - WEIMHEE
ABERSERRRTERSEEF
R RRH AR R D o

BENEEMERA LINRARE
AORTETHE BB

EERE

() REBRIETEERHERE
MERIERBDEBIE - EHEE
ERE L@ AEEREE
BREERE - BENEBEERES
BUAT—E®ZE| EAKEE
ENEREFNABREN

- BEBAEAMRA :

- ERAEH PlmiERE
HEENS AR

— EHARAGERESETT
HisR5EA &

- Bilr W5 BEIOER

BHOEA KB Y EHA
AT .

2016 £/ wmzremsa 103



Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% S 2 P

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

B SRE LA E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Impairment of current and non-current receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For current and non-current receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(h) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

()

(i)

Impairment of current and non-current receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% S 2 P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br =B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Impairment of other assets (continued)

1

TRABTIHE)

intangible assets; and

investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

if any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(h) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 7= My et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSBBERI - FESBNBTAHE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
() INVENTORIES

)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.,

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 1(h)(i)).
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(k)

U

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

()

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour
rules and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.,
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Kee
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% S 2 P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
() EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial lattice model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’'s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT 75 ¥ 7= MY et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB BT FIEEFEAETHE)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 TEE: ¥ (&)
(CONTINUED)
(m) INCOME TAX (m) FREH

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilites are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% S 2 P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(m) INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT 75 ¥ 7= MY et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB RRS - FiE BB )
TESTBER (&)

BRERIRER

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
(CONTINUED)
(n) PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (n)

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% S 2 P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(= HERI

FiBESRAE T E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(o) REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

()

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at
the customers’ premises which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Rendering of services

Commission income of rendering property agency
services is recognised when the related services are
rendered and the relevant formal property selling
agreements are duly reached. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Govemment grants

Unconditional discretionary government grants from
the local municipal government authorities are
recognised in the profit or loss as other income when
the amount is received.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT 75 ¥ 7= MY et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB BT FIEEFEAETHE)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESH ¥ (&)
(CONTINUED)

(p) TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES (P) HEEBRE

For the purpose of presenting these financial statements,
the Group adopted Hong Kong dollars ("HK$”") as its
presentation currency. The functional currencies of the
Company, KEE International (BVI) Company Limited (‘KEE
International BVI"), and KEE Zippers Corporation Limited
(“KEE Zippers") are HK$ and the functional currencies of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC are Renminbi (‘RMB”).

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non- monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into HK$ at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into HK$ at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 7= My et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(= HERI

FiBESRAE T E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(1) BORROWING COSTS

(r)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarlly takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those
assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

1 1 6 KEE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED /2016 ANNUAL REPORT

1

TESTBER(H&)

(@) EERE

U]

HUWE B ERR A EEH
BERBHAIHEENEEMERE
EMEERAGRENMERBEERAR
B—En  HtEERABERES
HIRSI AR -

BRELEZHFRBEE
MIERBEE (R EAR) ZREE
REAGEEBHERX I MIEEBIE
ERAKE - ¥ AEE(KHEAR) =
AT EMEE - RIDBARBIEREZ
FRBEE(HLEER) - HEAS
BB THEZEE(RE—X5%
BR—M) MEZFEEERBEL
BEBRXSTEE -

EROBABIELER  FRBEE
(RHEMARTMERENEERERE)
ZATEBRBOBR Z T BERIELE
#eo B OISO BRFIELER
BRERL  FRBEE(TAETEE
BRON S h SRR R BRE(E R A
B ERARE 2 BIKE T ARER

NEDBRFELEMERERIEL
EREMAEMEEZREBFESE
EafR  REFRDEE—ENE
Z%?T{’Eﬁj%‘kﬁ?%ﬁ’“*ﬁ%%f’ﬁtlj%
ZHEARS  ZIERBDEETG



Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(s) RELATED PARTIES
A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(@)

(b)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 7= My et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(s) RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
(b)  (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT 75 ¥ 7= MY et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(MR EHERIN A SBEABTEH)

REVENUE 2 W
The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and sale of REBNTIEER SRS RIEENE R EHM

zippers and other related product, and rendering of property HEES @ ASIREDERIBRE -
agency services.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows: EEXEZRRERSEMAT ¢

2016 2015
$'000 $000
Fr Tt

Sales of goodss HEEmM
Finished zippers and sliders MR8 R P BR 139,926 146,346
Flat knit ribs TR 1,698 7,747
Others Hith 3,944 4,923
145,568 159,016

Rendering of services TEHAR T

Commission income of rendering property REERERBAE KA

agency services 7,630 -
153,198 169,016

No individual customer had transactions exceeding 10% of the

BEERTFHAR ZEEBASEE KA

Group’s revenue., 10% o
OTHER INCOME 3 HUgA
2016 2015
$°000 $000
Fr Tz
Interest income B A 1,231 1,879
Government grants BiSi® 275 153
Net foreign exchange gain PE H W F 58 10,161 1,675
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEDE  WEREED (EB),/
plant and equipment ek (4,147) 26
Others Hith 32 1,323
7,552 5,056
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% S 2 P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R BAEISN - FTASEUBTTH)
4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) FINANCE COSTS

4 KRBADEF

(@) BB

BRBATE N 2R, (GEA) THISE

2016 2015
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Interest on bank borrowing TEERNF A 9 420
(b) STAFF COSTS* (b) EIRA*
2016 2015
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Salaries, wages and other benefits I& - FHFKEEMETR 55,592 50,749
Contributions to defined contribution [\ JE R FGRIRET B A3k
retirement plans 6,381 5,071
Equity settled share-based payment AR BN SRR S
expenses (note 22(a)) (WE 22(a)) - (593)
61,973 55,227
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Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT 75 ¥ 7= MY et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4 BRBAEF ()
(CONTINUED)
(c) OTHER ITEMS (c) HMEE
2016 2015
$’000 $000
F T
Depreciation and amortisation™ HrEe R EgE
— land lease premium (note 10) — TiHEEA 8 700
— property, plant and equipment — M - BB RRE
(note 10) (H3E10) 12,220 16,322
— intangible assets (note 11) — mREERE M) 799 1,102
13,027 18,124
Auditors' remuneration B RN &
— audit services — R 1,760 1,097
— tax senvices — B R 18 205
— other senvices — HM AR 840 348
2,618 1,670
Impairment losses charged on trade BEBETAR S KEA
and other receivables (note 14(o)) FEUFRIE (M FE 14(0)) 1,034 168
Impairment losses charged on WEE BT ARE (HEE10)
equipment (note 10) 4,513 -
Operating lease charges: KEHERY
minimum lease payments HIEEEMR
— hire of plant and machinery* — HRAREE ks 4,342 4,474
— hire of other assets - HREMmEE
(including property rentals) (BEWERS) 172 188
4,514 4,662
Research and development expenses e 1,790 2,079
Cost of inventories* (note 13) FERA(MFE13) 103,497 110,919
Cost of inventories includes HK52,651,000 (2015: HK§52,007,000) T FHAE A52651,0008 T (2015F -
relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses and 5%’09 7 ’OOOA/?E VA TR ZKA nE- &
operating lease charges, which amounts are also included in the HE ﬁ? R A‘Eﬁgg FXHRH & 5’-‘% Lpy
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 4(b) BFER LX) TSR B
AEBEA o

for each of these types of expenses.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 GFREEmXxAMMER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED (a) HFEBBERANFEBHIE:
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
REPRESENTS:
2016 2015
$°000 $000
ST T
Current tax — PRC corporate BEAFIIE — HELEMER
income tax
Provision for the year FREME 8,892 2,882
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFEREETR GBEEE)
prior years 365 (123)
9,257 2,759
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits ENEAFiIE — BEEFEHRREM
Tax and others
Provision for the year FNEE 268 93
Deferred tax IERER IE
Origination and reversal of temporary TRHEEENEE REE
differences (1,108) 665
8,417 3,617
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5

Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)
(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEHEI -

mEBERANFER ()

B SRAETAE)

(b) HEMXEZBEARRAENS

AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT AT APPLICABLE AW EERNEDT
TAX RATES:
2016 2015
$'000 $000
Fr Tt
Profit before taxation R AT & A 31,654 6,757
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BB HMNEZERTE - & HE
calculated at the rates applicable to R EERBFEBNRERAE
profits in the jurisdiction (BfF3ED
concerned (note i) 8,672 2,719
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR AT 2 3,566 927
Effect of non-taxable income IEERBIMA R T E (1,692) (44)
Effect of tax losses not recognised RERHTIBEENTE 158 1,227
Effect of tax concessions (note i) BsEE 2 (M) (3,307) (1,446)
PRC dividend withholding tax (note iii H B S FEF0HE (PR &L i) 442 139
Under/(over) — provision in prior years BEFERETR (BEEE) 365 (123)
Others Hith 213 118
Actual tax expense ERBIEMS 8,417 3,517

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group
is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands or the BVI.

KEE Zippers, Fortress Gain (HK) Limited, Wide Bright
Investment Limited, and Ever Grace (China) Limited
are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5% in
2016 and 2015.

REREHENEBRELES
(ITRBRELES ) REPIER -
AEBEBENFERSNREBRE
LR EBMNERER

HeHNE  XB(EB)BRAD
A BERERRAGREY
(R EH)BRARK2016F &
2015 F 7812 16.5% T RN E B
R -
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By 7% S 2 P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br =B

5

FiBESRAE T E)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE
AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT AT APPLICABLE
TAX RATES: (CONTINUED)

(i)

)

KEE (Guangdong) Garment Accessories Limited (*KEE
Guangdong”) was recognised as a High and New
Technology Enterprise (*HNTE”) and was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% up to 2018.
Except for KEE Guangdong, the statutory income tax
rate applicable to the Company's other subsidiaries in
mainland China was 25%.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC and its relevant regulations, PRC-resident
enterprises are levied withholding income tax at 10%
on dividends to their non-PRC-resident corporate
investors for earnings accumulated beginning on 1
January 2008. Undistributed earings generated prior
to 1 January 2008 are exempted from such
withholding tax. Under the Sino-Hong Kong Double
Tax Arrangement and its relevant regulations, a
gualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the
‘beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of the
equity interest of a PRC-resident enterprise is entitled
to a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%. As at 31
December 2016, deferred tax liability recognised in
this regard was HK$1,124,000 (20156: HK$682,000).
(see note 15(b))
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BEMXERERARRGTENES

mA BRI
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)
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M7 (BER)REEHAARA
Uﬁ%%%Dﬁﬁm%E%&m

tE(EFRMMEED  I=ZF
15% B EAMEHHEEE2018

FoBRHASERI  HARARD
AR B A 30 A B B A B HY A
FEFTISHE B 25% o

RIE A B> RS RLE R H AR
1&el - R EE RS ER 82008
FI1RAIHBMERFTAFREIE
PRERMGEREERNES
AN 10% 8 B o 742008
FIATAREENADKREF
EERRIBME - RIEAHEEE
e EEHBAD LARHRAL
REBEER ERIESH
BAIUHEREERMZE2%
HUA ER AR ERATEER
% IE R AT IRR 2 B B A E 5%
BE - R2016F 124318 ' 5t
hHERANELCH EBAEA
1,124,000% 7T (20154 :
682,000/ 7T) ° (FFRHFE15(0))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(A EERIN - FTBETRABITAE)

6 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 6 EEME
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HZ2016F12A31 HILEE
Salaries,
allowances
and  Retirement
Directors’ benefits scheme
fees inkind contribution Total
id 28 3
E20e  RENEA SRR st
$000 $°000 $000 $°000
T T Tr T
Chairman K
Xu Xipeng (Resigned on 17 February 2016) k(o016 F2 17 BEHT) 32 265 4 301
Wu David Hang (Appointed on 17 February 2016) RAIE (R 201652 A 17 HEZ(T) = = = -
Executive directors HITES
Xu Xinan (Resigned on 17 February 2016) SH5E (K016 2 A 17 BEHT) 32 254 4 290
Chow Hoi Kwang, Aloert S H (201662 A 17 BEHE)

(Resigned on 17 February 2016) 48 - - 48
Hou Jian (Appointed on 17 February 2016) R (R2016F 2817 BEZRT) = = = -
Non-executive director FHTES
Yang Shaolin (Resigned on 17 February 2016) BAOM(R2016%2 517 BEHT) 19 - - 19
Independent non-executive directors BUKHTES
Lin Bin (Resigned on 17 Februery 2016) WIE (R 201652 A 17 AEHE) 22 - - 22
Kong Hing Ki (Resigned on 17 February 2016) STEE(R2016% 2817 BEHT) 19 - - 19
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EBE(R2016F2 817 BEHT)

(Resigned on 17 February 2016) 19 - - 19
Wong Yik Chung, John =2EL

(Appointed on 17 February 2016) (R2016F2 A 17 BEZ) 125 - - 125
Tse Calvin Kai Chuen Bl

(Appointed on 17 February 2016) (R2016F 217 BEZFE) 125 - - 125
Leung Ka Tin 25

(Appointed on 17 February 2016) (R20165F2 B 17 AEZAE) 125 - - 125

566 519 8 1,093
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B 75 7= My et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

6 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 6 EEM= (&)
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HLEFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contribution Total
e o 2k RIK
EEHe REDEF FHEIHRR BET
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Chairman 3
Xu Xipeng il 240 819 23 1,082
Executive directors HITES
Xu Xinan EET] 240 748 23 1,011
Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert EE 360 - - 360
Non-executive director FHITES
Yang Shaolin B AR 144 - - 144
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors 168 - - 168
Lin Bin RO,
Kong Hing Ki /Iﬂﬂiiﬁ 144 - - 144
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EIBE 144 - - 144
1,440 1,567 46 3,053
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT 75 ¥ 7= MY et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 6 EEME (&)
(CONTINUED)
There were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the NEBWMEDNKENTFESSK N X7
directors or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 7 Pt & 25 A TR {E ] A T8 S AR S| 1%
below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a EMBAREBSEAIMAREES B
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under B MESENELARENETAHENE
which a director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. HE o
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 7 BEFMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, nil (2015 two) hEZERHMALRIWEES(2015F : 2
is director. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the Z) o BINEZ (2015 - 38 ) == HH A
other five (2015: three) individuals are as follows: THEMEsENT
2016 2015
$’°000 $000
Tt Tt
Salaries and other emoluments e N E b 3 B 1,942 1,320
Discretionary bonuses EYISTE4T 1,507 48
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET IR 109 167
Share-based payments LARS 9 A B9 32 - (68)
3,558 1,467
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B 75 7= My et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

7 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 7 BEFMALGE)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The emoluments of the three (2015: three) individuals with the 3% (20165 : 3R ) B HFMATHEHN
highest emoluments are within the following band: FLATEE :
2016 2015
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 == 1,000,000 7T 3 3
8 EARNINGS PER SHARE 8 BRER
(a) BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (a) BEREXER
The calculation of basic eamings per share is based on the BRERZBFDIRBEAR QR ERRR
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of F& 15 & F)21,940,0007% 7T (20154 -
HK$21,940,000 (2015: HK$4,161,000) and the weighted 4,161,000 L) R FRABEETZE R
average number of 434,330,000 ordinary shares (2015: R& 2 hnkE S 15 81 434,330,000 f% (2015
422,467,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year, F 1 422,467,000 (% @A) T E T

calculated as follows:

2016 2015

’000 ‘000

FTr T

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January K1 A1THEBEITHEBRR 426,820 415,000

Effect of share options exercised BITFBRENTE

(note 22(c)) (3£ 22(0)) 7,510 7,467
Weighted average number of ordinary K12 A31 B EBR

shares at 31 December INREF 8 434,330 422,467
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BT 75 ¥ 7= MY et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 8

(b) DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$21,940,000 (2015: HK$4,161,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
434,617,000 shares (2015: 431,003,000 shares),
calculated as follows:

ZFRABR ()
(b) SREARF

ESRECER R TR IR AR R AR R
JE 15 % F) 21,940,000 7T (20154 :
4,161,000/ 70 ) K& @R 2 Nk F
434,617,000 (2015 F :

431,003,000 &) st & T -

2016 2015
'000 000
Fr Tt
Weighted average number of ordinary 12 A 31 B Ay @A InE 15 21
shares at 31 December 434,330 422,467
Effect of deemed issue of shares under RIEARQ R BAETEIAEZRE
the Company's share option scheme RIEBITTRHO ZFE
for nil consideration 287 8,536
Weighted average number of ordinary 12 A 31 BEmAghntE a8
shares (diluted) at 31 December (BE#E) 434,617 431,003
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

9

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography. During 2016, the Group has set up a
new segment of “Real estate agency services”, which represents
property agency businesses for residential properties.

Accordingly, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Zippers (Mainland China):

This segment manufactures zippers products and mainly
sells to customers in mainland China. Its activities are mainly
carried out in Guangdong province and Zhejiang province.

Zippers (Overseas):

This segment purchases zipper products from segment of
Mainland China and sells to overseas customers. Its
activities are mainly carried out in Hong Kong.

Real estate agency services:

This segment represents property agency services

businesses for residential properties. Its activities are mainly
carried out in Mainland China.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
() SEGMENT RESULTS, ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of investments in financial
assets and deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and other payables and bank borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
profit before taxation” i.e. “revenue less cost of sales,
distribution costs and administrative expenses”. ltems not
specifically attributed to individual segment are excluded
from the calculation of segment profit. The Group’s senior
executive management is provided with segment
information conceming segment revenue, profit and assets.
Segment liabilities are not reported to the Group’s senior
executive management regularly.

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

9 7 EHE (&)

(a)

THRE  BERER

EHE D BMERR LR BEIEER
mE AEESRATERABRIN
TEBEZEZREDMEMENRER
BE -

DHEEREMAEEN BREER
MBEE HEBREERERELR
REERI - DHBERBREZRHED
MEENE S NMEMENFKIALRT

fBE -

Wt K Th2E %% D B EE R
HENRZENRMELNFMA - Sh
ZEDHEGEENTESHEME
EREMFES  DEEA2HmAE

RRIE D ERE M RS R
BADEA | Bl MR H E AR ~
AR R AT BT ) o 5t E 2 8B A
B o I N EHAFERE E B R E B 2 &R EY
BB - AEEERNSMAATEEAER
REEESHMkE  HENREENSD
MEH - AEETEEHAAEES
BRTERABEZROHEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

9 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 9 4% 3#%&E (&)

(a) SEGMENT RESULTS, ASSETS AND (a) 7HHEE BEERAEMEE)
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 respectively is set out below:

D RIFE E 2016 F K 2015F 12 A 31
BIEFENERDERFEDIERR
MAEESHANITEEABRESH
AEER 2FHHIBHERSHNOT

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE20164F 1231 HILFE
Zippers Real estate
— Mainland Zippers agency
China — Overseas services Total
Eok: ] fIg EiE
— FE Rt - 85 RERB st
$000 $000 $000 $000
Tr T Tr Tr
Revenue from external RENRBP Y
customers 122,478 23,090 7,630 153,198
Inter-segment revenue o b E 43,896 607 - 44,503
Reportable segment 2R Bz
revenue 166,374 23,697 7,630 197,701
Reportable segment A2HAWEF,
profit/(loss) (&) 9,040 (731) (529) 7,780
Interest expense FERAX - (9) - )]
Depreciation and amortisation FRFEREH
for the year (12,860) (167) - (13,027)
Impairment of equipment HERE (4,513) - - (4,513)
Reportable segment assets FRNTER
at year end PUEE 187,494 8,381 175,726 371,601
Addlttions to non-current FRLBIERBEE
segment assets HRE
during the year 9,176 860 6 10,042
Reportable segment FRNTEFIBER
liabilities at year end 29,192 602 53,103 82,897
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHEII - FESBEABTHE)
SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 9 % #f#&E ()

(a) SEGMENT RESULTS, ASSETS AND (a) oPHEE - EEREE (H)
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE2015F 12 H31 HIFFE
Zippers Real estate
— Mainland Zippers agency
China  — Overseas services Total
Bar g FEiE
— FEIA — BN RIZART Bt
$000 $000 $000 $000
FIT T T T
Revenue from external KEIINREP W
customers 142,696 16,320 - 159,016
Inter-segment revenue o EP R 9,890 353 - 10,243
Reportable segment 2D WU
revenue 152,586 16,673 - 169,259
Reportable segment 2D IR, ()
profit/(loss) 9,609 (1,330) - 8,279
Interest expense BRI - (420) - (420)
Depreciation and amortisation & 378 K 2
for the year (17,430) (694) - (18,124)
Reportable segment FHRNUEHITEE
assets at year end 340,669 28,272 - 368,941

Additions to non-current segment F N5 2R3 ENE EH)

assets during the year NE 11,649 26 - 11,675
Reportable segment FHRONTEH,BEE
liabilities at year end 11,285 42,347 - 53,632
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(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

9 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 9 NEpHHE(F)
(b) RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE (b) TEHRpBWE BRREERE
SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT OR LOSS ENHER
AND ASSETS
2016 2015
$’000 $000
T T+
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue BEE e 197,701 169,259
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ShgE o5 B R W e (44,503) (10,243)
Consolidated revenue (note 2) FeaWE(WHiE2) 153,198 159,016
2016 2015
$°000 $000
Fx Tz
Profit = F
Reportable segment profit A] 25D 2 F 7,780 8,279
Elimination of unrealised profit of HENHHEBEERE C HtwEE
inter-segment purchase of inventories, KW - BEREZEN
other assets and property, REIR 5 7
plant and equipment 97 ©671)
Reportable segment profit derived XREKXEBNMRZFHNT 2R
from the Group’s 2 2B R
external customers 7,877 7,608
Other income H MU A 7,552 5,056
Impairment losses on non-current assets  JERENA & 2 REEE (4,513) -
Unallocated head office and RoBLBIp R
corporate expenses (14,708) (5,907)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR/ 17,837 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BENEZE
and equipment and VAR E L #b T B 5 e
leasehold land to related parties 17,609 -
Consolidated profit before taxation #3& R AEF] 31,654 6,757
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BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

9 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 9
(b) RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE

(b) AEHRD W

(BB A RSN
ZEbEHRE (&)

B SRAETAE)

- BNREERE

SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT OR LOSS EMNEER(E)
AND ASSETS (CONTINUED)
2016 2015
$’000 $000
T T+
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets 2RO BEE 371,601 368,941
Elimination of unrealised profit of S BRBEFER
inter-segment purchase of EtEEMRER ST
inventories and other assets (2,046) (1,997)
Elimination of unrealised profit of inter- IS HEBEYE  BEK
segment purchase of property, RIEMARE IR R A
plant and equipment (433) (578)
369,122 366,366
Deferred tax assets BT E E 2,985 1,435
Unallocated head office and ROMBBREEEE
corporate assets 33,653 1,130
Consolidated total assets FEEERBE 405,760 368,931
Liabilities =K
Reportable segment liabilities AIERNLAE 82,897 53,632
Current tax liabilities BIEAFIE B E 1,392 285
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 1,124 632
Unallocated head office and ROMBHLTEEE
corporate liabilities 2,058 1,305
Consolidated total liabilities mEaEsE 87,471 55,904
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(= HERI

FiBESRAE T E)

9 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(c)

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods were delivered and services
were rendered. The revenue of the Group mainly derived
from sales to customers and rendering of services in
Mainland China except for sales of HK$23,090,000 (2015:
HK$16,320,000) to overseas customers for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The geographical location of the Group's property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets and prepayment for
property, plant and equipment (the “Specified Non-current
Assets”) is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment, the location of
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of
intangible assets. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
non-current assets were located in Mainland China and
Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$59,583,000 (2015:
HK$211,818,000) and HK$880,000 (2015:
HK$20,889,000) respectively.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% - E  r #LESE L 1
AND LEASEHOLD LAND

Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own use
Vehicles under
and other  Leasehold Construction operating
Buildings ~ Machinery  equipment improvement in progress Sub-total leases Total
HERERE
AE ZERALH
BF B RHEMBRE W HERE  REIR N HENER Eh
$000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 §000 $000

T T T i T T T T

Cost: AE:
AT January 2015 R015%F1A1A 59,467 115,953 1359 12,987 91,918 293,880 36,379 329259
Exchange adusimerts Ei5% (5,301) 7,172 (741) (765 0,184 (16229 0,064 (18.287)
Additions RE - 1,144 193 1 9,887 11,3% - 11,3%
Disposdls it - 6% (265 - 9 P97 - 974
Trensfer fiom OP BEEIREN 80311 10436 - - (00,747) - - -
At31 December 2015 and R201581231A

1 January 2016 R2016%E1A18 134,387 17,731 12742 12,393 8,825 286,078 38315 319,393
Bichange adjstments B} 5% 730 7354 615 (786) (189 (9,869 ) 0915
Addltions HE - 284 1,300 - 8,365 9,949 - 9949
Disposels e (66,531) (12,100 011) - 0884 12,408 4,729 77.1%)
Disposals of a subsiolary HEHBAE (717.126) - (1,269) - 86) (18477) (28539) (107,016)
Transfer to assets held-for-sale ERTHENELE - (2.529) - - - 2529 - (2,523
Transfer fiom OP BEEIREN - 8121 - - 8121) - - -
At 31 December 2016 Ro0i6%12A31R - 104159 11,061 11,607 596 1375 - R
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(BRBEFAIN  FTESBBIITTE)
10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% - KE  r RERHAE L

AND LEASEHOLD LAND (CONTINUED) (48)
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own use
Vehicles under
and other  Leasehold Construction operating
Buildings ~ Machinery  equipment improvement in progress Sub-total leases Total
HELERE
ot ZERALH
BF g RHtRE W HERE  REIE N HERER Eh
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

T v T T T T T Tn

Accumulated depreciationand ~ E3tHEREE:

impairment:
A1 January 2015 Ro1551A1R 11799 51007 9250 9941 - 82,006 2327 84,333
Bxchange adjustments ERHE (789 (3269 (543) (612) - (5,209) (165) (5,374)
Charge for the year ERgil 3756 10604 1,098 74 - 16322 700 1702
Witien back on disposals REEREE - 2,609) (251) - - (2,854) - (2,854)
At 31 December 2015 and H2015E12A318

1 January 2016 R2016%1 A 1A 14,766 55,833 9563 10,103 - 90,265 2862 9127
Bxchange adusiments B A% (360) (3,750) 613 (670) - 5399 (10) 5409
Charge for the year ER 18 1043 97 667 - 12200 8 1228
Impaiiment loss HEFE - 4513 - - - 4513 - 4513
Witien back on disposals REERED (13.233) 8452 (843) - - (225%) [918) (23,446)
Disposal of a subsidary N (1,356 - (371) - - (1,726) (1,949) (3,668)
Transfer to assets held-for-sale EEERENEEE - 1.021) - - - (1921) - (1921)
At31 December 2016 Ro016% 12831 B - 56,657 8673 10,100 - 75430 - 75430
Carrying amount: BHAE:
At 31 December 2016 Ro016% 125318 - 47502 2378 1,507 5936 57,323 - 57,323
At 31 December 2015 R2015E 128318 119,621 61,098 3179 2290 8825 195,813 30453 226,266
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

ltems of property located in Hong Kong, plant and leasehold
land located in Zhejiang province of PRC with net book
values of HK$20,699,000 and HK$26,410,000 respectively
were disposed of at a total consideration of HK$69,333,000
to two related parties during 2016, which resulted in a total
net gain on disposal of HK$17,609,000. The two related
parties are Foshan City Nanhai Jinheming Investment
Company Limited (‘“Nanhai Jinheming”) and Classic Winner
Limited ("Classic Winner”) which are owned by Mr. Xu
Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan, the senior management of the
Group.

In addition, the disposal of other equipment to other third
parties resulted in a net loss of HK$4,147,000 during 2016
(2015 a net gain of HK$26,000).

ltems of properties, plant and equipment and leasehold land
located in Hubei province of PRC with net book values of
HK$76,751,000 and HK$26,597,000 respectively were
transferred out as a result of the disposal of the equity
interests in KEE (Jingmen) Garment Accessories Limited
(“KEE Jingmen”) by the Group during 2016.

Impairment loss

The management is considering the disposals of certain idle
equipment with the carrying amount of HK$7,214,000 as at
31 December 2016. According to the assessment of the
Group, the carrying amount of the equipment as at 31
December 2016 exceeded its recoverable amount, which
was calculated as its fair value less costs to sell. Therefore,
an impairment loss of HK$4,513,000 has been recognised
in profit or loss (note 4(c)).

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

10 tg@g HE - REREELH

(a)

(b)

UREBZME NRFPENTAEZ
BEREELWNEEFES B
20,699,000 7T & 26,410,000 T
72016 F 1% 42K {8 69,333,000 T
ETMaMEs  HEFHEBEE
17,609,000/8 JT ° # M % B iE 77 &
IWTEESFBEREFRAR(EE
SMEF]) RERERAR([BR]) -
ZELFRAEERATEABHY
We o E RFF BRI LR -

o - RooteFmEME = FHER
1o ER BB B E AR 18 4,147,000/ 7T
(20154 : HUG 28 26,00087T) °

URAPEBRILEEERFED A
76,751,000 7T }& 26,597,0007% JT B
W WEREHBEEEAREE LM
EAREER 2016 FHERHS (F1FT)
RER BB AR (FESHPIL) ki
BYEHEGE -

REEE
EEEEERETHEHERE(R2016
F12 A31 HE®EEA7,214,000%87T)
FME - REBEAEERNFTE %R
R2016F 12 AN BZ EEERBHE
AUk El &8 R E QA ER S EKAET
&) o Ak HIEEIE 4,513,000 T
BREBEZEAER(RMEL0) °
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(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS MILEE
Software
B
$000
Tt
Cost: AR -
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1H1H 11,448
Exchange adjustments PE W 82 (668)
At 31 December 2015 and 1January 2016 M2015F12 A31 B X2016%1 A1H 10,780
Exchange adjustments PE W A2 (631)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEKB AR (2,412)
At 31 December 2016 R®2016F 12 H31H 7,837
Accumulated amortisation: 2ty
At 1 January 2015 R20154F1 A1H 3,782
Exchange adjustments bE H AR (265)
Amortisation for the year F N 1,102
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 M2015F12 A31 B X2016%1 A1H 4,619
Exchange adjustments P& 5 B (306)
Amortisation for the year F 799
Disposal of a subsidiary HERB AT (322)
At 31 December 2016 ®weole%12/4316 4,790
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F 12 A31 H 3,047
At 31 December 2015 M2015F12 A31H 6,161

FREHFRET AR BRERTTHFA P

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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(BRBAETAI FTELBEUBLTE)
12 RITEB A RIHNKRE
THREHFIHAEENLE SAERER/A
5 E AR B A TS o

12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

Place of Attributable
incorporation/ equity interest
establishment Issued and fully e I Principal
Name of company and business paid up capital Direct Indirect activities
ML/
NRER R B R EH BRTRBERE Ef Mg TZER
KEE Intemational B! BVI 2 ordinary shares of 85% - Investment holding
US$ 1 each
KEF International BVI EERAES oREREE 1 EaM LRk 85% - REARR
KEE Zippers Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares - 100% Trading of Zipper products
Gk X 1,000,000 - 100% EER@ER
KEE Guangdong® The PRC HK$137,500,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
Zipper products
AAER" H 137,500,000/ - 100% 4EREEHEER
KEE Znejiang® The PRC USD8, 760,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
Zipper products
AL EF 8,760,000% T - 100% 4ERBENEER
Foshan UNA Cultural Gifts The PRC RVB3,000,000 - 100% Design and sdle of
Co., Limited™ gament accessories
FLTERRRERAA"  ® AR 3,000,007 - 100% Rt RIEERERM
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(BB BRI - FRESBENETEH)
12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 R E A RKIRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Place of Attributable
incorporation/ equity interest
establishment Issued and fully FEfL I Principal
Name of company and business paid up capital Direct Indirect activities
MR/
NRER RIMERER ERTRARRK EE B FEEE
QOriental Choice Holdings Limited BV 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each
Qriental Choice Holdings Limited EERAES TREREE 1 EHLRR 100% - REBR
Wide Bright Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
BEREBRAA B 1B {n - 100% BEER
Baiyu Ventures Limited BV 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each
Baiyu Ventures Limited EERAEHS 1REREE I ETHLER 100% - REBR
Ever Grace (China) Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100% Investment holding
BY (hE)ERAF Bk 1Rk R - 100% RERR
Neo Ocean Ventures Limited BV 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each
Neo Ocean Ventures Limited RBRIHES 1REREE 1 ETNEER 100% - REER
Fortress Gain (HK) Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
KR(ER)BRAT 0 1R - 100% REER
Tianjin Jinhui Day Gold Co., Limited ~ The PRC RVB100,000,000 - 100% Real estate agency
(Tianjin Jinhur")* services
REGERGARAA([R22E]) PE AR¥100,0000007 - 100% BHERERS
These are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC. * ZENFAPESEE ﬁﬂ};—%
These are companies with limited liability in the PRC. o ZENTAFEEREES
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

The following table listed out the information relating to KEE
International BVI, the only subsidiary of the Group which has
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”) as at 31 December 2016.
The summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

12 RIB R RRRE (F)

TREFIR2016F 12 A AAEEHEE
R =
AIKEE Intemational BVIBBHE R - LT 2
DB E R BB AR A RIEE SEAT S

5 ([ SRR ) HOME— BB A

2016
$°000
Fr
NCI percentage e R B DL 15%
Current assets mENE E 123,686
Non-current assets EMENEE 63,442
Current liabilities MENEE (54,231)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (1,124)
Net assets BEFE 131,773
Carrying amount of NCI R M BR T B 19,766
Revenue Was 145,569
Profit for the year FREH 8,647
Total comprehensive income ’i\ﬁﬂﬁz)\ 30,425
Profit allocated to NCI D E IEHE Hﬂ 1 A4 A 1,297
Cash flows from operating activities LEEHFBRERE (1,332)
Cash flows from investing activities BREEHBEERE 368
Cash flows from financing activities BMEFBMERERE (5,308)
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(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

13 INVENTORIES 13 FE8
2016 2015
$°000 $000
Fx Tt
Raw materials R 6,922 5,371
Work in progress TR 11,501 9,077
Finished goods RUAK T 994 1,426
19,417 15,874
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an HRAMIURFREERRARNTESRE
expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit or DT -
loss is as follows:
2016 2015
$°000 $000
Tt Tz
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENKREE 102,989 111,101
Write down of inventories WomFE 2,113 1,658
Reversal of write-down of inventories BOEMRTE (1,605) (1,840)
103,497 110,919
The write-down of inventories was related to decrease in the FEMR AN E TREREFE Z2E5tA]
estimated net realisable value of certain slow-moving inventories. BIRSEER DT -
The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years was RiBEFERRFEMBR I AREL2ERH
due to an increase in the net realisable value of certain finished EE%E TEM MM AR FEILMATE -

goods with reference to the latest selling price.
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(BRABEAIN - IESREBTTEE)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 EF R HMWEWRIR

2016 2015
$°000 $000
F5 T
Trade debtors and bills receivable FEUR BRTE N e U ZE i 37,481 29,467
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note 14(b)) & : REREE (HH3E14(b)) (1,037) (145)
36,444 29,316
Other prepayments H M IE IR 2,276 383
Salary expenses paid on behalf REBEHFINF AL
of a related party 2,920 -
Advertisement expenses paid on behalf REMERERIHESE
of the Property Developer 92,649 -
Deposits and other debtors e K EMRE A 1,470 2,315
135,759 32,014

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognized as expense within one year.

During 2016, Tianjin Jinhui paid salary expenses of
RMB2,612,000 (equivalent to HK$2,920,000) on behalf of its
related party — Beijing Zhonghong Network Marketing Consultant
Co., Ltd. ("*Zhonghong Network”), to Zhonghong Network's staff.
Zhonghong Network is a subsidiary of Zhonghong Holding
Company Limited (“Zhonghong”), which is an intermediate holding
company of the Group.

During 2016, the Group signed the advertisement agency
agreements on behalf of Hainan Xinjia Tourism Development
Company Limited (“the Property Developer”). Certain of these
expenses amounting to HK$48,044,000 was paid by the Group
to the relevant advertisement agents on behalf of the Property
Developer. This amount was recorded as other receivables in the
Group’s consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31
December 2016. The remaining outstanding advertisement
expenses payable on behalf of the Property Developer amounted
to HK$44,605,000 (note 19), which is expected to be paid to the
relevant advertisement agents and collected from the Property
Developer in 2017,

FIAEME 5 M EMENFIR - BEHE—FR
WU SRR R ©

R20164F » RKEGBNRKREBESTILRF
SABARE M AR AR ([ LB D) M
A B T EBIF X AR 2,612,000
TT(FBE 72,920,000 L) » AR 4 AR
SEFREERAFFRLERRERHBR A A
([H3A B AR °

R2016%F « REBER K GENERERE
ERAB(MEREY D) ZBESNER
o AEBRRYEMAEFRAMABESRIE
S ETZEE M 48,044,000/ 7 © %558
RAEEHZ20164F 12 A 31 HIEFE 4R
G BHmEP ARIIEEMERGRIE - RE
MEREFRINFNBGRSTESEA
44,605,000 7T (MY sE19) FEEAR 2017 F X
NTFEBESRIEREWEREGUE -
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(BRBEFAIN  FTESBBIITTE)
14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 ES R HEWFEE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) AGEING ANALYSIS (a) BREZDAT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of HEAREH R BEZRZHE LT
trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in b REERME R FEURBRTE L FE W E 1 (51
trade and other receivables) based on the invoice date and AE SR EH M REWEIE) B BE 5 T 10
net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: N
2016 2015
$’000 $000
Fx Tt
Within 1 month 1A A 18,742 11,206
1 to 2 months 12218 A 8,696 8,998
2 to 3 months 2FE3fEA 5,361 4,297
Over 3 months B3R 3 & A 3,645 4,815
36,444 29,316
Trade debtors and bills receivable are in general due within JEWERIBE R FENE BB TE N E A A
20-90 days from the date of biling. Further details on the HEEF20E0 BN - BRAAKERE
Group's credit policy are set out in note 24(a). BB A E — S BE N5 24() ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(% SEREI - FrE S BT H)
14 E5 R EtEWRE (&)

(b) EWERIBR EWZEERE

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)
(b) IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE DEBTORS AND

BILLS RECEIVABLE

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 1(j).

UL IR TE & B MR = IR R R E BB AR A
BEERN RIEAEEREWEKIE
BeEM - FRERT  BEBES
EENEIAREE KBRS (B2
MM 1() °

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during FRARBRBEEIHOT
the year is as follows:
2016 2015
$’000 $000
FTr T
At 1 January Hn1A1H 145 160
Exchange adjustments b H % (48) (15)
Impairment loss recognised ERRRAESE 1,034 168
Uncollectible amounts written off i EE N AT U Bl @ BE (94) (168)
1,037 145

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade debtors and bills
receivable of HK$1,037,000 (2015: HK$145,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables are mainly related to customers that
were in financial difficulies and management assessed that
the receivables are not probable to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts were
recognised in full. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

R20165F 12 A31H » REBEWER
18 N FEUZE 51, 037,00078 7T (20154 ¢
146,000 7T ) B FE AERRE - & @
B (B W 5k T8 3 2 B 3R B R R EfE
MEFER BEERETG  FEEZ
LRWKIBBT AR EME - FAt - B2
PEHMABFTERERE AEETXR
MRS EHRFEEMERD -
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By 7% S 2 P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABEAI - BESRAETETE)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 ES R HEWFEE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE DEBTORS AND
BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

(b) EBWAREREWEERE (&)

BE FEME R 71 FE H R 4% 4R 72 80 (B 6 FE U
FRANEREENRESTT

2016 2015

$°000 $000

Fr T

Neither past due nor impaired BE AR BN RO (B 23,586 17,838

Less than 3 months past due BEATE31EA 11,986 9,617

More than 3 months but less than i HA KB A 3 1E A

12 months past due ERE121EA 865 1,535

More than 12 months past due B AR 12 1E A 7 326
Amount past due BHIS R 12,858 11,478

36,444 29,316

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBFHAN - IESBNBTE)
15 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 15 &4t RRAWETEH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION
(a) CURRENT TAX PAYABLE/(RECOVERABLE) (@ HEMBERRERAMWEHE
IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 1+ (aTugmE) HIEE :
FINANCIAL POSITION REPRESENTS:
2016 2015
$’000 $000
Fr Tt
At 1 January »1A18 (722) (1,140)
Exchange adjustments ERRECE 1 41

Provision for PRC corporate income tax PRI TS B (MEE5()

(note 5(a)) 8,892 2,882
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior BTSN BAE

years for PRC corporate income tax FERBTR(BEEEE)

(note 5(a)) (KtzE5(a)) 365 (123)
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEFEHEE (ME5@)

(note 5(a)) 268 93
Income tax paid EFTERE (7,450) (2,475)
At 31 December M12HA31H 1,354 (722)
Represented by: B -

2016 2015

$°000 $000

Fr T

Current tax payable BNERFET IR 1,392 285
Current tax recoverable BNER AT U [ #7218 (38) (1,007)
1,354 (722)
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(B =B -

B BB E)

15 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

RECOGNISED:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

156 ZEMBRRRANAEBH
(4®)

(b) ERBEEREELEE (BF)

KRB B B RS2k P R RO T B TR
BE/ (BB @ERBORFANES

position and the movements during the year are as follows: AR
Unrealised PRC
profit dividend
arising from withholding
intra-group tax
transactions (note 5(b)
Depreciation elimination  Provisions (iii) Total
SERRS FERE
BEENRER BB
e BAE 8 B% (MEE5(b)(iii) @t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
e FaR TR Far AR
Deferred tax arising from: EIERERE -
At 1 January 2015 EA2015¢ 1H1RH 326 453 1,182 (643) 1,418
Credited/(charged) to SRR
consolidated statement of .ﬁr)\/ %)
profit or l0ss 94 (228) (392) (139) (665)
At31 December 2015and  R20156E 12 A31 B K
1 January 2016 20161818 420 225 790 (682) 753
Credited/(charged) to BB BHER
consolidated statement of = (308
profit or loss (41) 239 1,352 (442) 1,108
At 31 December 2016 201612 431 A 379 464 2,142 (1,124) 1,861
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BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REBEFAIN ABESEUBTFE)
15 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 15 A M BRRAXAWFEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(c) RECONCILIATION TO THE CONSOLIDATED () HREMBRRBEREK :
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION:
2016 2015
$°000 $000
Fr Tt
Deferred tax asset recognised in RERE BSOS R AER
the consolidated statement BIERIBEE
of financial position 2,985 1,435
Deferred tax liability recognised in RERE BB R R
the consolidated statement ZIELEIBAE
of financial position (1,124) 682)
1,861 753
(d) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED (d) RAEINELEHEEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note BB 1) FTE A S 5T EE - A&
1(m), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in B R R R AT YUETIE 1,891,000
respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$1,891,000 (2015: 7 T (20154 1 9,179,000/ 7T ) 2 i
HK$9,179,000) as it is not probable that future taxable ERIEEE AR T ARAIEER BT
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be T B8 AN . B8 B A AR 2R FE SR B M DA
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax R L& 8 o IRBIBITEUE - B
losses expire in five years under current tax legislation. BN R EIE] -
() DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES NOT (e) ABAMNELHRIEEE

RECOGNISED

At 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’'s PRC subsidiaries
amounted to HK$94,169,000 (2015: HK$68,903,000).
Deferred tax liabilities relating to a portion of these temporary
differences amounting to HK$3,061,000 (2015:
HK$2,239,000) have not been recognised in respect of the
tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

MN20165E12 A1 B AEAEEh
BB ARAD RafMER=Z24%
94,169,000 7T (2015 £ = 68,903,000
Br) ERELERMEERESHENE
EFRIA A (& 53,061,000/ 7T (20154
2,239,000 70) © B AR BIE # 7%
EWBARMKRERE  BZEH A
WRAETZRA BB RSIK - Bt
WD R Z SR E S FIEED
EHFIBEEEMNEERIEAE -
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(B SBBEEIN - FESENETHE)
16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

16 RERBRSEEY

2016 2015

$°000 $000

Tt T

Deposits with banks RITFR - 16,766
Cash at bank and in hand RITNFBERE 186,496 69,128
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIRSZEY 186,496 85,894

As at 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents in the
amount of HK$138,321,000 (2015: HK$78,782,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the ordinary
course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible currency and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange
restriction imposed by the PRC government.

As at 31 December 2016, RMB200,007,000 (equivalent to
HK$223,587,000) of cash balance from the Property Developer,
in which Tianjin Jinhui, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company,
acts as the exclusive property agent thereof, was deposited in a
newly opened bank account in name of Tianjin Jinhui as the
designated escrow account for the Property Developer. The
above escrow account arrangement was requested by one of the
banks of the Property Developer (“the Bank”) which provided bank
pborrowings to the Property Developer. It served as guaranteed
deposits to the Bank.

As the Group has no right to use the cash balance from this
escrow account and does not obtain benefit of interest income
earned therefrom, the Group did not recognise this cash balance
from escrow account as its own assets in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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R2016% 12 A31H » & %8 A&138,321,000
BT (20154 78,782,000/ 70 ) IR & K
REEBYNHUAAREE  WRAEER
@%%EPTE&HAEPI AR IER] B AR AR
RER K BIEHE AR RBARHIN
FEE ) o

R2016F12A31H  REMERERE (K
RAZEEMBRATIRESCHETHEBERY
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRARBERA - FBESBABTAE)

17 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 17 FEHENEE
As at 31 December 2016, certain machines with net book value R2016F 12 A31 H » BRE F{E £A602,000
of HK$602,000 were classified as other assets held for sale. BITH A THEWEEABERENEME
These machines were sold to a third party in January 2017. E o ZEMBDN0I7TEIBEETE=F -
18 BANK BORROWING 18 RITHEE
2016 2015
$°000 $000
SETE T
Secured bank borrowing DIEARITER - 15,000
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has the total banking MHo016F12A31H AEBEEEAARKE
facilities amounting to RMB24,000,000 (equivalent to 24,000,000 7t (F%7 26,830,000/&7T) * &
HK$26,830,000) which were wholly unutilised. These bank HABA ZEARBARTEABRELER
facilities were unsecured and guaranteed by Mr. Xu Xipeng and 15 BFFSIE R RFFS R EER o
Mr. Xu Xinan.
19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 ESZ REMENRIE
2016 2015
$°000 $000
SETE T
Trade creditors TERTBRIR 12,978 6,688
Payroll and staff benefits payable ENTITENE TIEH 12,943 7,924
Accrued expenses BRI 5,330 3,980
Payables for purchase of property, BEYE  BEMREBEMNRIE
plant and equipment 2,831 9,062
Other taxes payable HibpENEiIE 983 733
Advance from third parties E=ZHERR 4,024 10,742
Advertising expenses payable (note 14) EEERY (HE14) 44,605 -
Other payables H th 3B 1,261 858
84,955 39,937
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 ESZ R HMEAIE (&)
(CONTINUED)
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FEME S REMERAKIE Bt —F R
within one year or are repayable on demand. AR BEREFEE -
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade HEARREHAR - BIERZHH - ENERE
creditors (which are included in trade and other payables), based GtAE S REMERIE) RBR DT - 10
on the invoice date, is as follows: N
2016 2015
$’000 $000
T Tt
Within 1 month 11E A A 8,903 4,232
Over 1 month but within 3 months Hmim 1 EAERIEAR 3,364 1,607
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBiE3EAEREANRN 439 686
Over 6 months BiEeEA 272 163
12,978 6,688
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20 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS

21

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the plan
at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2015: HK$30,000).

Employees in the Group’'s PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement scheme. The PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute to the scheme at rate of 10%-14% of the
eligible employees’ basic salary. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment of
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions as described
above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions passed on 14
December 2010, the Company adopted a share options scheme
(“the Scheme”) whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised to grant options to selected eligible persons as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group and/or to recruit and retain high caliber eligible
persons and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group.

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRARBERA - FBESBABTAE)

20 EERAKER

21
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BEBERBKARZEEEREANEEER
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JL) °
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

21 BERGEROINNRS (&)

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one

ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(a) DETAILS OF THE MOVEMENTS OF THE
SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED ARE AS

B0 ERER TR A AN R

Lk - W E

ERAR M S E -

RAART

(a) RUBRESB2HFBRIMT

FOLLOWS:
2016 2015
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
InFEF5 i IR 1 15 A
TEE 2 TEE A
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
BT TR BIT TR
Outstanding at the REGRITE
Peginning of the year 1.13 9,274 0.80 37,290
Lapsed during the year FABEER - - 1.39 (200)
- - 0.60 (150)
Exercised during the year FRITE 1.39 (6,216) 1.39 (308)
0.60 (1,768) 0.60 (11,512)
Cancelled during the year FRNFFH - - 1.39 (2,796)
0.60 (1,290) 0.60 (13,050)
Outstanding at the RERKITE
end of the year - - 1.13 9,274
Exercisable at the end RERAITHE
of the year - - 1.13 9,274
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

MOVEMENTS IN COMPONENTS OF EQUITY
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Detalls of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below:

22 X - FERKRE

(a) EHID 2B

AEBEAERE N FVRERE

AR EREBORFNRFRARZ
HEFBHINWT

The Company P NN
Share Share  Capital Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
BE RHRE BEXRE RKRIEER @et
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
BisE T T T T T
Balance at R2015E1 18
1 January 2015 ) A5ER 4,150 138,096 6,204 8,359 156,899
Change in equity for 2015: 2016 FHEREE) -
Total comprehensive FRZERAELSE
income for the year - - - (3,648) (3,648)
Dividends declared and paid IR EIRALE - (8,522) - - (8,522)
Shares issued under BEBRET IR
share option scheme RIRD 22(c)(i) 118 9,518 (2,301) - 7,335
Equity settled share-based PEREEROZT
transactions X5 - - (593) - (593)
Share options lapsed TR BE R
during the year - - (70) 70 -
Balance at Ro015F12 831K
31 December 2015 201651 A1 BEYAER
and 1 January 2016 27 4,268 139,002 3,330 4,781 151,477
Change in equity for 2016: 2016 FiERE
Total comprehensive FRERRARE
income for the year - - - 41,380 41,380
Shares issued under RERBREET I RT
share option scheme ofvah 22(c)(if) 80 12,708 (3,087) - 9,701
Share options lapsed F IR BE R
during the year - - (243) 243 -
Balance at R2016F 12 431 HEY
31 December 2016 e 27 4,348 161,800 - 46,404 202,552
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 &7 - ##ERIRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) DIVIDENDS
No final dividend was proposed in respect of the year

(c)

ended 31 December 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL
() Authorised and issued share capital

(b) KE
ARAREBTNREHZ2016F12 A

(c)

31 HIEFEARBKRE -

RS

() SEERBEITRA

At 31 December 2016
A2016F12H31H

At 31 December 2015
MR2015F12 4318

No. of Share No. of Share
shares capital shares capital
B A [N ESvE 4= AR AR
000 $’000 ‘000 $000
T & SeTE F % Tt
Authorised, EE
Ordinary shares of FREEO0.01ETT
HK$0.01 each HE A 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, ZER - 28T
issued and RHR
fully paid:
At 1 January ®W1A1H 426,820 4,268 415,000 4,150
Shares issued under RIREEAR T2
share option scheme FTEs1THIR (D 7,984 80 11,820 118
At 31 December W12 A31H 434,804 4,348 426,820 4,268

(i)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year 2016, options were exercised to
subscribe for a total of 7,984,000 (2015:11,820,000)
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of
HK$9,701,000 (20156: HK$7,335,000), of which
HK$80,000 (2015: HK$118,000) and HK$9,621,000
(2015: HK$7,217,000) were credited to share capital
and the share premium account respectively. The
amount of HK$3,087,000 (20156: HK$2,301,000) has
been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in
note 1()(i).
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

SHARE PREMIUM

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

According to the Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, dividends may be declared and paid out of
share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose with the sanction of an
ordinary resolution.

STATUTORY RESERVE

Statutory reserve was established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company's subsidiaries incorporated in
the PRC. Transfers to the reserve were approved by the
respective board of directors.

KEE Guangdong and KEE Zhejiang, which are wholly
foreign owned enterprises incorporated in the PRC, are
required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit (after
offsetting prior year's losses), as determined under the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to statutory general
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital under the PRC Company Law and the
articles of association of these entities. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution of dividends to
the equity shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good prior
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up
capital provided that the balance after such conversion is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRARBERA - FBESBABTAE)

22 EX - ERkRE ()

(d)

(e)

MR A7 %8
REFSBEESQFEER) - B
BERAESETARABE - HER
EREEESKBRBZBR  AREH
BREINBEXRHEETEESIRE
78 o

REARBZABEREAN@ AR
ARFALEBRRBRMARTR S A
s BRI EMNEMESHIRA
BRSO RS ©

EE

VA TE {6t 12 PRAEL R R B AR B K2 AR 1 DA
Ko A o B E A SZ B0 AR 2 B B B 8 )
MABERARIRY BEE/ER
HREES S -

P % ER N ST SETBEEMX
VRINEBEDLE  ARNEEAESF
ERERESELEN RIETBEETH
AIRROETE)NED10%BRE—RK
AEFR BEERBERERET
ARARGZESERNABEIZAANA
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)
() CAPITAL RESERVE
Capital reserve comprises the following:

—  reserves arising prior to and during the reorganisation
of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2010;

—  changes in equity attributable to the shareholders of
the Company arising from contribution from non-
controlling interests for acquisition of interests in a
PRC subsidiary, up to 31 December 2015, and were
subsequently transferred out due to disposal of the
related subsidiary during 2016; and

—  reserves arising from the disposal of the Group equity
interests of KEE International BVI. During this year, the
Company disposed its 15% equity interests of KEE
International BVI to Nicco Worldwide Inc. (“Nicco”), a
related entity owned by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan, at a cash consideration of HK$24,627,000.
The change in the Company’s interests in KEE
International BVI that does not result in a loss of
control was accounted for as equity transaction,
whereby adjustments were made to the amounts of
controlling interests — capital reserve and non-
controlling interests of HK$2,891,000 and
HK$21,736,000 respectively within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests but no
gain or loss is recognised.

(g) EXCHANGE RESERVE
Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than HK$. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(p).
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)
(h) DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

0

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to the equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$198,204,000 (2015: HK$147,203,000).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings, and obligation under finance
lease, if any), less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity.

During 2016, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2015 was to maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio below 20%. The Group'’s debt to asset ratio, being the
Group's total liabilities over its total assets, at 31 December
2016 was 22% (2015: 156%). In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholder, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

BV 7% Ak B
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23 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
In January 2016, the Group disposed all of its 80% equity
interests of KEE Jingmen to Nanhai Jinheming at a cash
consideration of HK$105,216,000. This disposal resulted in a net

23 HEWB AT
R2016F 1A A& B & R € K B
105,216,0008 T HE ERF S HIPIH 256
80% A& #E TR /85 FIER - 2 IE S FIES

gain of HK$17,837,000.

17,837,000 7T ©

$'000
Tt
Net assets disposal of; HEEEFE :
Property, plant and equipment WE - B K& 75,999
Interests in leasehold land held for own BEREHEZ AT HHENERS
use under operating leases 26,336
Intangible asset BEE 2,070
Trade and other receivables B 5 NEME Hﬁlm 8,615
Prepayment for non-current assets FEMENE ETR KT 246
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRe%SE % 14,950
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M ERIE (18,468)
Net assets disposed HEEESFE 109,758
Representing: 5
Equity attributable to the equity shareholders RRa R E LR
of the Company 87,588
Non-controlling interests FEIERERERS 22170
109,758
Net assets attributable to equity shareholder RARERBREGEEFRE
of the Company 87,588
Capital reserve realised on disposal LEMBERMEREE (209)
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB ARG FE 17,837
105,216
Satisfied by: BT
Cash consideration BERE 105,216
Cash of subsidiary disposed HENBRARRE (14,950)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect EHRHE—RHNBRARICREMNREE
of disposal of a subsidiary (RPN 90,266
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 ¢hiERBREERAALHE
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, interest rate, liquidity and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

CREDIT RISK

The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 20-90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are past due are
usually requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group'’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore certain concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 33% (2015:
15%) of the total trade receivables were due from the
Group's five largest customers.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 14.
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RERE - BRESRABEHRE
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G -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 $REBREERAAME(E)
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowing carried at variable rates, which exposes the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The effective interest
rate of the bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 December
2015 was 2.72%. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
had no outstanding bank borrowing.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investments of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
parent company’'s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, if
any, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group are
carried at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the financial
liabilities are with maturities within one year or repayable on
demand at the end of the reporting period.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and bank deposits and which give rise to receivables
and cash balances that are denominated in United States
Dollars ("USD”) under KEE Zippers and KEE Guangdong.

As HKD are pegged to USD, the Group considers the risk
of movements in exchange rates between USD and HKD to
Pe insignificant.

The Group had RMB denominated bank deposits
amounting to HK$184,000 (2015: HK$4,948,000) that was
held by KEE Zippers for which HK$ is its functional
currency. Additionally the Group had HK$ denominated
inter-company other receivables amounting to
HK$178,5661,000 (2015: Nil) that was held by KEE
Guangdong and KEE Zhejiang for which RMB is their
functional currency.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
appreciation/depreciation of 0.5% in HK$, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s net profit for the year and retained profits by
approximately HK$745,000 (2015: decreased/increased
the Group’s net profit for the year and retained profits by
approximately HK$21,000).

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rate had been applied to re-measure the bank
deposits which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency.

FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRARBERA - FBESBABTAE)

24 cRiEMREERAE(E)

(d)

(e)

E¥ R
AEEEENEYRBRTIEREHE
RBETER KERZUBELFESE

R AET([ET ) sHEZ B
R R IR R o

RABTTEETHE  AEERRE
TLEB T Z MR E R Z BB E KT
BB -

REBUARBTENRITEHE
184,000/ 70(2015%5F © 4,948,000/7T)
MAZREFE  MZzAFNETE
BINEEEE o 1o NEBMBEF B
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178,561,000/ 7T (20154 « #& )+ M
HIBRENAIIMNTIUAAREAEED

EEE®RE -

BT

R2016F 12 A31 B st E B T
BETHE, B2 {E0.5% M Fr B Hith # 8 R
BAE  NEBFRLEF MR & T
#5180,/ A 49 745,000 7T (2015
F o AEBETFRNEF RIRB H R
L BEANE) 21,00087T) -

LM BRRE DT T EREE T HRT
FRECEANEERZS K
REERFERABREAZINERR -
BB MW EZ EASEINER R
KMEABAEEEREBMEENE
=1

ARE

R2016F K20156F 12 A31 B AL E
BT AEZREEREEALERE
ERER-

2016 £/ Mrzremsa 165



Kee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 7= My et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R BA TSN - B FABTTEH)
25 COMMITMENTS

(a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016
and 2015 not provided for in the financial statements were

25 &iE
@ F2016E K20165E 12 A31 8 KRR
B Rk AYE R BB R E AR T

as follows:
2016 2015
’000 ‘000
SPom T
Contracted for BET4 193 9,391

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum
leases payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

b RHEEHR RETAHMELCEHEE
R AR RS ER SRR T ¢

2016 2015

’000 ‘000

Fr Tt

Within 1 year 1R 5,038 4,781
After 1 year but within 5 years 1ERBREER 4,781 9,247
9,819 14,028

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

At 31 December 2015, the directors considered the immediate
controlling party of the Group to be Nicco, while ultimate
controlling parties of the Group to be Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan. During 2016, Nicco transferred 310,490,000 shares,
representing approximately 72.745% of the issued share capital
of the Company, to Glory Emperor Trading Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Zhonghong.

On 17 February 2016, Mr. Xu Xipeng resigned as the chairman of
the board and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Xu
Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan resigned as executive directors of the
Group, but have remained as the directors of KEE International
BVI and KEE Zippers, the subsidiaries of the Company since 17
February 2016.
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(@) TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions disclosed in other parts of the
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions:

U

(i)

The Group entered into an operating lease in respect
of certain plant and buildings with Mr. Xu Xipeng and
Mr. Xu Xinan, the senior management of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
rentals paid by the Group under this lease agreement
amounted to HK$4,342,000 (2015: HK$4,297,000).
As at 31 December 2016, the Group's total operating
lease commitments to Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan amounted to HK$8,684,000.

After disposals of property, plant and leasehold land
as mentioned in note 10, the Group agreed to
leaseback those assets from Classic Winner and
Nanhai Jinheming. Both lease agreements in respect
of the property, plant and leasehold land covered a
duration of one year only. The Group was required to
pay rental expenses of HK$1 and HK$ nil to Classic
Winner and Nanhai Jinheming respectively under both
lease agreements.

The above related party transaction constituted continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules are provided in section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Report of the Directors.

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BEEBEIN FTESREABITEIE)
26 EXEEFIRXSG ()
(a X%

R BHRREMBOABRENRLS
N REBEETY NI BERBAH TR
5
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MEFIIULEHE - HE2016
FI2A BLIEFE - AEERE
AHEHEHEINHES A
4,342 00078 7T(20154F = 4,297,000
BIL)e R-ZE—XRFE+ A
=+—8 KXEEESTHHE
SRS ENKERER
YE4EE8 58,684,000/ TC °
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(R REZAN - BESEABTEE)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

COMPENSATION

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 6 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

26 EXBEEIRS (B)

(b) EEEBASHM

IZEEASHM(RIEMEOTHE
XNFARBDEEOHRIBRMET T
BEXNTETRRFMEI)WT

2016 2015

’000 ‘000

Fr T

Short-term employee benefits HEE WA 4,739 5,102
Retirement scheme contribution RRETEIEE TR 134 185
Share-based payments PARRAR A B9S2 - (139)
4,873 5,148

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 4(0)).

Remuneration for certain directors is borne by Zhonghong,
since Zhonghong has become the intermediate holding
company of the Group.
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(BRARBERA - FBESBABTAE)

27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 27 A EEHEMBERRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

2016 2015
Note $’000 $000
B 5E Tt FT
Non-current asset IRBEE
Interest in a subsidiary LSUEYNCTA: £ S - -
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary NG B 170,959 151,647
Other receivables H{th B U Z0 T8 823 185
Cash and cash equivalents B4 MESEEY 32,830 944
204,612 162,776
Current liability REBEE
Other payables Hiwpertxs 2,060 1,805
Net current assets REBEEFE 202,552 151,471
Net assets EEFE 202,552 151,471
Capital and reserves BRRHE
Share capital A% A 4,348 4,268
Reserves & 198,204 147,203
Total equity S 22(a) 202,552 151,471
= o
28 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE 28 HERBRRERS
CONTROLLING PARTIES
At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate R20165F12A31H BEERAREE CH
controlling party of the Group to be Glory Emperor Trading BEERG APLZ 2 EMBRARRTESE
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Zhonghong, while the PRAF  MAEEZ &EERA REKLLE
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mr. Wang Yonghong. - RTESERAFNEBRE LRS M
Glory Emperor Trading Limited is incorporated in BVI. This entity PR o FZEREW NRE A ARE RIS
does not produce financial statements available for public use. Wk o
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(B =B -

B BB E)

29 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that
underlie the preparation of the financial statements. The Group
bases the assumptions and estimates on experience and on
various other assumptions that the Group believes to be
reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements
about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources.
On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates.
Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts,
circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the
sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
financial statements. The significant accounting policies are set
forth in note 1. The Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and estimates
used in the preparation of the financial statements.

(@) IMPAIRMENT
(i) Non-financial long-term assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the assets
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. When
indication of impairment is identified, management
prepares discounted future cashflow to assess the
differences between the carrying amount and value in
use and provide for impairment loss. Any change in
the assumption adopted in the cash flow forecasts
would increase or decrease in the provision of
impairment loss and affect the Group’s net asset
value.

(i) Receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the
debtors to make the required payments. The Group
pases the estimates on the ageing of the trade and
other receivables balance, credit-worthiness of the
debtors and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the debtors were to deteriorate,
actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.
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29 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
value, if any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives
of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
experience with similar assets and taking into account
upgrading and improvement work performed for anticipated
technological changes, and legal or similar limits on the use
of assets. The depreciation and amortisation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

INVENTORIES

The Group determines the write-down for obsolescence of
inventories. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the experience in selling goods of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
change in market condition.

INCOME TAXES

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which they can be
utilised, management's judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

BV 7% Ak B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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29 FEETHEE R HE (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHIN - B SBAB T E)

30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

30 22 ﬁﬁ@m%‘zz& 2016 F 12 A
B1HIEFERKRE MZ%H~
HEARZREZUEFE

PSP BRETIZERAS  HEetMag
EAMZIEBR LA ER - ZEBFT RITE
BIREZE2016F 12 A31 B IEFEEAERR -
SRR MBERAZSEE] 2B R
ARl o XTSI REEARE B AR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BT BHS 2 #BRRH
BHHBER

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

ERRHERE TR ZER]  HEeREX « KFEHE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes. Recognition of deferred tax assets

for unrealised losses

R G ERE 12 MER] - FIEH : BLAZE B IRMER I

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

ERUBEMEERNEON  2MTA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

EEMBHREERE 165 EPEAKE

Amendments to HKAS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement

of share-based payment transactions

BRI AL 2R - URHALBAOMH : LIRS AL

R B2 AR 2

HKFRS 16, Lease

ERUBMEERE 165 HE
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF 30 EAMHIEREZEZ2016F 12 A

AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified only HKFRS 16, Lease which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the expected impact is discussed below. As the Group has not
completed its assessment, further impacts may be identified in
due course and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where
there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.

HKFRS 16, LEASES

As disclosed in note 1(g), currently the Group classifies leases
into operating leases, and account for the lease arrangements,
according to the nature of the lease. The Group enters into leases
as the lessee.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, subject to practical expedients, at
the commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-
use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

31 B IEFEEARERZIEF]
MEARZERZUESE (R)

AERE IERHE R FE R M &R & (E e A
HELNTE 2% AKECREREE
BMBREENFE 1R HENELGHER
MBmRENTE ARBRHIFEZE—T
FBER T Xt - AR AEE L RTERERT
o BWE—FTENENEERRHES - B
AR TE R E AR A HIFDR E 2 B SRR T
%5 FRTE M P R ER A B 1 77 2 (e 3 2
ADEFFEM ) KMAZEBER -

ERMBHREENF 165 HE

WP EE Q) TR ER - BRI AKEREBEHEEN
EREESBEREEHEENARINEEER
BE o REBERAMEARIZEE -

—BRBAFRS B BRAE BN BHREER
F1HRERBRAME) - AEAKER
EHREEFENRERIANAEEESR
& REHEREEN[ERE] EE - 1R
THRAZBEENRBER  AEASHEREE
BEESRMELENN SR REREEE
B MR EBRARAGEEERRELE
MOmELNHEERXHRERR - (FRE
RV T - ATEATEE ISR
AEAREHEE(BIERR12@AHIAT)
LREEBEEENHE REIFBERLT  HE
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(BB - TS BB )
30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF

AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, LEASES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the
lease. As disclosed in note 25(b), at 31 December 2016 the
Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amount to HK$9,819,000, the majority of which
is payable either between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date.
Some of these amounts may therefore need to be recognised as
lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a more
detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and
liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on adoption of
HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of the
practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS 16 before its
effective date of 1 January 2019. However, early adoption of
HKFRS 16 is only permitted if this is no earlier than the adoption
of HKFRS 15. It is therefore unlikely that HKFRS 16 will be
adopted before the effective date of HKFRS 15, being 1 January
2018.
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o

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following B X EZ R BTIEI  EARFRA - THFEZBAES

terms shall have the following meanings.

“Board”

=

‘CG Code”

[EATAl

‘Company”

/NI

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Group”
[AEHE ]

‘HK$” and “HK cents”
[t & 78]

“Hong Kong”
[ &%

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
[ & R AP

means

=1
=]

means

means

means

{=1
=]

means

=7
=]

means

means

=7
=]

means

=7
=]

A TR -

the Board of Directors

-

code on corporate governance practices as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules
AR 14 PrE R E R E R TR

KEE Holdings Company Limited, an exempted company incorporated
with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands on 6 July
2010, the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange

HAZERBIRAGT - R2010F7 A6 HIRERS S EETMA L
RERRERAR - AROREBEIAER LT

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the
context of the Company, means Glory Emperor Trading Limited and Mr.
Wang Yonghong

BB FTRAME T2 RELRARFIXEMNS @ HRTESHAR
NCIE S, 351

the Director(s) of the Company

RRRIER

the Company and its subsidiaries

RARREWEA R

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong
Kong

BBEEREBITLEN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
P EEERRITTRER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBEZZHFBR AR
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R 52

‘KEE Guangdong”

(FRZER]

“Listing Rules”

[ sRAll

“Main Board”

[ =R

“OEM”
[OEM

‘PRC” or “Ching”

[ B

“Prospectus”

(B ERE

‘RVB’
AR

“Share(s)”
A5 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[P&ER ]

means

means

=7
=]

means

means

=1
=]

means

=7
=]

means

=1
=]

means

=7
=]

KEE (Guangdong) Garment Accessories Limited, a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 21 March 2005 and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
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the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange
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the stock market operated by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, which
excludes the Growth Enterprise Market and the options market
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original equipment manufacturer or manufacturing
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the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and
Taiwan
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the Company's prospectus dated 31 December 2010
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Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
HEEEEMARE

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
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shareholder(s) of the Company
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